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1 P R O C E E D I N G S

2 1:00 P.M.

3 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. We're all going to

4 try to convene now so if everyone will take their

5 seats, please.

6 Good afternoon. Good afternoon. My name

7 is Alex Karlin and I'm one of the judges of the Atomic

8 Safety and Licensing Board.

9 I want to call this proceeding to order.

10 We have a court reporter over there who will be

11 transcribing this, and so for purposes of the record

12 I'm going to just note that we're here to conduct a

13 Limited Appearance Statement session in the matter of

14 Progress Energy of Florida, who has applied for a

15 permit to construct and operate two nuclear power

16 plants in Levy County, Florida.

17 The docket number of this proceeding is

18 52-029-COL and 52-030-COL. And the Atomic Safety and

19 Licensing Board number is -- are you ready for this --

20 09-879-04-COL. COL stands for combined operating

21 license and that's the type of license that Progress

22 Energy has applied for.

23 Today's date is January 12th, 2012, and

24 our location is the Plantation Inn meeting room in

25 Crystal River, Florida.
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1 First I'd like to introduce the board and

2 the people who are here from the NRC with the Board.

3 To my left is Dr. Anthony Baratta. He's

4 the Associate Chief Judge of the Atomic Safety and

5 Licensing Board. He has a Ph.D in Nuclear Engineering

6 and was formerly a professor and chair of the Nuclear

7 Engineering Department and program at Penn State. He

8 also was in the Naval Nuclear Engineering Program with

9 the U.S. Navy.

10 To my right is Dr. Randy Charbeneau. He

11 has a Ph.D in Civil Engineering from Stanford. He is

12 a water resource engineer and a professor of

13 engineering at the University of Texas in Austin. He

14 served for eight years as the Director for the Center

15 of Research and Water Resources and, among other

16 things, his publications include a textbook on

17 Groundwater Hydraulics and Pollutant Transport.

18 I am, as I said, Alex Karlin. I'm a

19 lawyer by training. I spent 30 years as an

20 environmental lawyer and I've now been a judge here

21 for an additional eight years. And I serve as the

22 Chair of this proceeding, of this Board.

23 We have other members of our staff here.

24 And to the right here is two lawyers who are working

25 with us, sitting at the table. Matt Flyntz and Josh
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1 Kirstein. They are lawyers and they do legal research

2 and support for this board.

3 In the back of the room is Ms. Sara

4 Culler. If you would raise your hand, Sara. She has

5 some materials back there which I'll refer you to in

6 a moment. And if you want to make a statement or

7 present, state something here, please register with

8 her. We'll talk about that in a minute.

9 Mr. Ledford, Joey Ledford is in the back

10 there. He is the Office of Public Affairs with the

11 Nuclear Regulatory Commission and any media

12 representatives who wanted to ask him questions he

13 will be here and try to help you with that.

14 We also have the deputies -- the Sheriff's

15 Office of Citrus County has sent some people here to

16 help us, and Officer Santiago and Costelli are the

17 primary liaisons with us and we thank them for being

18 here with us as well.

19 We're here to conduct a Limited Appearance

20 Statement session and I'll talk about what that is in

21 a minute. We issued a Notice on December 7th, and it

22 appeared in the Federal Register on December 13th,

23 informing people that this session would occur.

24 This is, in essence, a time for us to

25 listen to members of the public who have an
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1 opportunity to comment and to talk briefly about the

2 litigation that we're trying to handle, that we are

3 handling here in this case.

4 (Cell phone ringing.)

5 JUDGE KARLIN: I'm going to get to in a

6 moment, please ask people to put their cell phones on

7 silence.

8 Before we start I want to cover five

9 items. This is going to take a few minutes but I hope

10 it will explain what we're doing a little bit.

11 First housekeeping; second, what is this

12 board or the Atomic Safety and Licensing Board; third,

13 the history of this proceeding, a little bit of the

14 history -- some of you may don't know it very well,

15 others may be less familiar; four, the purpose of a

16 Limited Appearance Statement session; and fifth, the

17 procedures we would like to follow as we go through

18 today and have the Limited Appearance Statement

19 session.

20 So first, housekeeping. Cell phones,

21 please put your cell phones on mute. If you have any

22 conversations, please carry them on outside if you

23 would, please. We would appreciate that.

24 Also, with regard to media. Welcome any

25 media representatives who are present. They are an
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1 excellent of informing the broader public of what's

2 going on here and we hope that this will be -- we're

3 glad to have them here.

4 With regard to any photography. Media

5 photographers, ambient lighting only. We have a

6 policy -- I think we've issued it out; they are aware

7 of these kind of things, but ambient lighting only.

8 And, please, don't move around the room a whole lot

9 because -- sort of station yourself in one spot if any

10 photographers are here.

11 We have one official photographer here,

12 Mr. Larry Jordan, on the left, and he's going to move

13 around a little bit and take some pictures. But other

14 than that, please abide by these. We want to maintain

15 so we can focus on what the people are saying.

16 Transcript. A transcript will be made of

17 this proceeding and it will be entered into the record

18 and it will be available on NRC's web page in about a

19 week or two, so it can be accessed.

20 Other housekeeping. Restrooms, there's a

21 ladies room -- I believe if you go out the back and

22 turn to the left. And there's a mens room, if you go

23 out any of these doors and turn to the right and go

24 all the way around to this corner of the building, is

25 my understanding, and that's where the facilities are.
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1 A second major point, which is the nature

2 and role of the Atomic Safety and Licensing Board.

3 Federal law sets up the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.

4 And its function, its role, is to regulate civilian

5 nuclear facilities in the United States.

6 And one way of looking at it is the NRC

7 has three branches, kind of like the federal

8 government. The first branch or entity is the

9 Commission itself, five Commissioners who are

10 appointed by the President of the United States and

11 confirmed by the Senate. They are essentially the

12 executive function of the agency. They're the leaders

13 of the agency, so the Commission.

14 Second is the staff. The NRC has a large

15 staff of professionals; scientific, technical,

16 engineering, legal professionals who handle

17 applications as they are received and review and

18 process them. They are working on Progress Energy's

19 application for these COL licenses.

20 The staff also does an Environmental

21 Impact Analysis of the proposed facility and they do

22 safety analyses as well.

23 The third branch, as it were, is the

24 Atomic Safety and Licensing Board. We are kind of

25 like a judicial branch. We are established by the
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1 Atomic Energy Act, Section 191, so it's -- we're, you

2 know, a statutory entity that is created. And our

3 role is to decide, make decisions when a party, an

4 intervenor, an environmental group, a state or local

5 government challenges a permit that the NRC is

6 processing and considering. And so that's why we're

7 here today.

8 We are separate and independent from the

9 NRC staff. Although we ultimately work for the NRC

10 and our paychecks are written by the NRC, we have no

11 connection with or allegiance to the staff. In fact,

12 the laws and the regulations prohibit us from talking

13 with the staff or the applicant on anything regarding

14 this matter, any matter of substance in this case.

15 The only exception is (a) what they say in open court;

16 and (b) what they file in the public files of this

17 proceeding.

18 And so we don't talk with the staff and we

19 don't talk with the applicant. We're independent of

20 those. Nor do we talk with the intervenor, I might

21 add, obviously. We don't have private conversations

22 with them and, once again, whenever they have to

23 communicate with us or whatever they have to say, they

24 say it in the public forum, public hearings, or in

25 their public filings.
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1 We're also independent and separate from

2 the Commissioners. The Commissioners don't tell us

3 how to vote on any given case or challenge. We don't

4 talk with them; they don't talk with us. We do our

5 best to make the right decision as we see it on any

6 given issue that's brought before us. And that will

7 ultimately become the decision of the NRC unless

8 someone appeals it and takes it to the Commissioners.

9 If somebody doesn't like -- if one of the

10 parties doesn't like what we rule, they can appeal it,

11 and they appeal it to the five Commissioners who then

12 sit as a judicial entity and review our decisions if

13 they're appealed.

14 The third point, a major point, is a brief

15 history of this proceeding. On July 28th, 2008,

16 Progress Energy filed its application to the NRC staff

17 for the COL licenses to construct and operate the two

18 nuclear power plants in Levy County. The staff began

19 reviewing those applications.

20 In December of 2008, the staff published

21 a notice saying anyone who has a challenge or doesn't

22 like, doesn't want this facility to be built or has

23 some problem with regard to this application, speak

24 now or forever hold your peace. And, indeed, three

25 entities came forward to challenge the application and
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1 they requested a hearing.

2 The entities are the Nuclear Information

3 and Resource Service, we call it NIRS, N-I-R-S; the

4 Green Party of Florida; and the Ecology Party of

5 Florida. Those three entities teamed together and

6 filed a joint request for a hearing and challenge to

7 the license, and we call those three parties the

8 intervenors. They are intervening in this proceeding.

9 So once that request was filed, the

10 petition was filed by the intervenors, this board was

11 created in February of 2009.

12 In April of 2009, we held a -- what we

13 call a -- we held an oral argument in Bronson, Florida

14 in Levy County at the courthouse. And at that time

15 the lawyers and the pro se representatives -- the

16 representatives for the parties, the staff, the

17 applicant, and the intervenors came forward, their

18 lawyers and their pro se representatives, and argued

19 and presented why their request for a hearing should

20 be granted and what specific complaints or contentions

21 that the intervenors were raising.

22 So we had a hearing in April 2009. In

23 July of 2009 we issued an order granting the

24 intervenors' request for a hearing, admitting a couple

25 -- several contentions that they had raised.
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1 So July 2009, we granted the intervenors'

2 request to have the hearing. The hearing is a trial,

3 the full trial where the witnesses testify, and

4 exhibits are presented, and we have a trial procedure

5 in a courtroom.

6 We granted the hearing, the request for a

7 hearing in July of 2009. Why haven't we had a hearing

8 yet, two years later almost. Well, the answer is

9 we're not allowed to have a hearing under the rules,

10 under the statutes and the regs, until the staff

11 finishes issuing its Environmental Impact Statement.

12 So the staff has been working on that

13 Environmental Impact Statement for the last couple of

14 years. And they spent a lot of time on that and

15 they've also been working on a safety analysis, too.

16 And the current schedule that the staff

17 has given us is estimated, it's publically available,

18 is they're going to issue their Final Environmental

19 Impact Statement in April of this year, 2012. So we

20 don't know if April 1st; we don't know if it's April

21 30th; and, in fact, it may be a little earlier or it

22 might even be later, May or -- that's just their best

23 estimate at this time, April of 2011.

24 Okay. That's when the trigger event --

25 I'm sorry, 12, 2012.
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1 That's when the trigger event occurs when

2 we can -- now when now we can have the hearing,

3 sometime after April 2012.

4 And what happens is the parties file

5 written testimony, written exhibits, certain motions,

6 a number of filings occur. And the hearing, the way

7 it generally works, comes in about five months later -

8 - five, six months, and so probably October 2012 we

9 will have the actual trial, the hearing request that

10 we granted will be -- and it will be somewhere in this

11 community. We would like to have it in Levy County

12 because it's Levy County facilities, but where it's

13 most convenient for us and for the public to watch.

14 Let's see. Currently in the legal

15 proceeding, the contested proceeding that the

16 intervenors have filed, there's one contention, one

17 main challenge that's going to be litigated. And

18 that's the focus of our jurisdiction and our effort,

19 and hopefully it will be the focus of your comments

20 here today.

21 The contention is kind of long but it's

22 very important. And in the Federal Register back

23 there on the back desk, Sara Culler has a bunch of

24 copies of the Federal Register notice. And if you

25 take that and you look on the right-hand column, the
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1 contention is stated. And it fills up almost the

2 whole column of this tiny little type, and then

3 another page. And you might want to read that; you

4 ought to read that because that's the issue that's our

5 jurisdiction to decide.

6 And I'm not going to read it but I think

7 I can try to summarize it. The intervenors are

8 alleging that the Environmental Impact Report by

9 Progress and the one that NRC has drafted, and it may

10 be final, as they quote, failed to "adequately

11 address, and inappropriately characterizes as SMALL,

12 certain direct, indirect, and cumulative impacts

13 onsite and offsite, of constructing and operating the

14 proposed LNP facility."

15 And they focus specifically on, quote,

16 "Impacts to wetlands, floodplains, special aquatic

17 sites, and other waters, associated with dewatering"

18 of the site that they -- that will be associated with

19 the construction and operating, and also they've

20 raised issues with regard to some salt deposition.

21 And those are -- that's the contention.

22 It's a long and somewhat complicated one that is going

23 to be litigated in the fall.

24 A final point as to the history. And this

25 is more prognosis than past, regarding the history of
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1 this application and this case.

2 I don't want to unduly complicate things

3 but actually you need to be aware that there are

4 actually going to be two hearings in this Levy County

5 application.

6 We are conducting the contested hearing

7 where parties are actually litigating against each

8 other and they're going to present evidence. And that

9 hearing will be on that contention I just read part of

10 it to you. It's called contention 4.

11 In the meantime, the statute, the law, the

12 Atomic Energy Act, mandates that whenever someone

13 applies to construct a new nuclear power plant, that

14 there has to be another hearing held and in this case

15 the Commissioners themselves, the five Commissioners

16 of the NRC, will conduct what is known as a mandatory

17 hearing. It's called a mandatory hearing because the

18 Atomic Energy Act mandates that this hearing occur for

19 all construction applications.

20 We handle other kind of cases, too.

21 Again, license renewals, upgrades, enforcement cases;

22 we handle a number of things. And that kind of brings

23 me to a point. There is a brochure in the back that

24 talks about the Atomic Safety and Licensing Board,

25 kind of who we are, what we do. And if you're
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1 interested you would be -- you know, you're welcome to

2 look at that.

3 And in any event, the Commissioners are

4 going to be conducting a mandatory hearing on the Levy

5 County application. And if they follow what they've

6 scoped out as their schedule, it will be within two --

7 I'm sorry -- three, maybe four months of the issuance

8 of the FEIS. So keep your eyes on the issuance of the

9 FEIS, because when that happens it's a trigger event

10 for us to have our contested hearing about five months

11 later, and for the -- for the Commissioners to have

12 their mandatory hearing three, four months later.

13 Huh? Two months? Well, okay. I was

14 cutting them some slack. Sometimes they say two

15 months; they have it within two months. So we'll see.

16 They may very well do that, and more power to them.

17 But our job is to handle the contested hearing.

18 That's our jurisdiction; that's our only jurisdiction

19 at this point.

20 Fourth point, the purpose of this session,

21 Limited Appearance Statement Session. These sessions

22 are optional. While some boards have them, some

23 don't, we thought it would be a good -- and the

24 purpose is to allow members of the public to speak and

25 address us, because all the other stuff we do is a
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1 trial type of proceeding. The only people who get to

2 talk are the lawyers and the representatives of

3 parties, and the witnesses, and the experts, and that

4 sort of thing. You know, when you have a trial

5 members of the public just don't stand up and talk.

6 But we have this separate thing called

7 Public Limited Appearance Statements where we can have

8 members of the public talk. And we thought it would

9 be a good idea, instead of spending all of our time

10 listening to lawyers, to listen to the public for a

11 little bit here. And so that's what today is for, for

12 us to listen.

13 This will be -- if you've been to any of

14 the other NRC-type of proceedings down here, it's

15 going to be a little different in that, as I

16 understand it, when the staff and the applicant will

17 sometimes have Environmental Impact Scoping Session.

18 And what may happen is the staff will put on a

19 presentation about the status of things and the

20 applicant may say some things and put on a

21 presentation, and the members of the public will get

22 a chance to ask questions, and the staff and the

23 applicant will usually try to answer those questions.

24 That's not the way this works; this is

25 just for us to listen. We're not making a
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1 presentation; we're not going to put on a dog and pony

2 show; we're not going to answer questions; we're just

3 going to listen.

4 Nor is it time for the lawyers to talk.

5 They've -- we've got four feet of pleadings sitting in

6 my office and growing that we've read, and we've

7 listened to them both in written form and orally in

8 public hearings that we've had, both telephonic, that

9 sort of thing. When they're telephonic they're open

10 to the public. You can listen in on a public line if

11 you want to. So, anyway, the session today is for us

12 to listen.

13 Finally, fifth point, the procedures for

14 today. Okay. We issued this notice back in December

15 about, you know, we're going to have this proceeding;

16 inviting members of the public to, you know, who want

17 to say something to speak. And we ask people to

18 register so we can take people in order.

19 We've had people register. Sara Culler

20 has the registration sheet in the back. If somebody

21 wants to register, you know, speak today, please go

22 back to her and fill out your name and then we will --

23 and we're going to take everybody in the order, you

24 know, that they signed up.

25 We have about 20 people who preregistered,
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1 who have already e-mailed or wrote in and said they

2 would like to talk, so we'll take those first. And

3 then anyone who registers here today at the door,

4 we'll have that sheet of people.

5 And I'm going to call them up by name in

6 order, you know, and ask each person to introduce

7 themselves and each -- and everybody gets five

8 minutes. You can speak for five minutes per speaker,

9 maximum. You don't have to take the maximum if you

10 don't want to, and hopefully you can focus your

11 comments on the contention, you know, because that's

12 our jurisdiction, really. And that's all our -- the

13 only thing we can. We can't solve global warming, or

14 do some other things about other stuff. We have a

15 specific thing we're focusing on and if you could

16 focus your contentions on that, that would be good.

17 Let's see here. Oh, we also have Written

18 Limited Appearance Statement sessions. If you don't

19 want to talk today, you know, you can submit something

20 in writing. And the information on how to do that is

21 in the Federal Register notice in the back. So, it is

22 an e-mail address and that sort of thing. You can e-

23 mail it in and we will read those things as they come

24 in.

25 Before calling on the first person to
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1 speak, is there anything Judge Baratta or Charbeneau

2 wants to add?

3 Okay. Thank you for enduring that

4 presentation, but I hope I explained a little bit what

5 we're doing.

6 We probably will take a break about midway

7 through this and so -- but we're planning to go 'til

8 4:00, and then we have another session this evening at

9 7:00 (a) if we don't get done with everybody today; or

10 (b) for people who are working during the day and

11 couldn't come so we have an evening session also.

12 That's our plan.

13 Oh, right. At 4:00 we are then going to

14 terminate the Limited Appearance Statement session --

15 that's what our notice said -- and then we're going to

16 take, you know, a 10 minute break and then we will

17 reconvene around 4:15 for something what's called a

18 pre-hearing conference. And this is sort of a

19 business session with the lawyers and with the legal

20 representatives of the intervenors and the parties.

21 And so they're going to come to the front and we're

22 going to talk with them about some of the planning for

23 the hearing and some of the preparation for the trial

24 and the hearing. And it's going to be sort of

25 lawyer-planning discussion and it's going to be more

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS

1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com



719

1 interactive.

2 You may want to sit in; you're welcome to

3 sit in that session, too. You may find it

4 informative.

5 That's a good point.

6 Okay, with that -- oh, I'm going to ask

7 Mr. John Seifert, who is the first person to have

8 signed up, to come to one of these two mics. And our

9 law clerk, Matt Flyntz, will be our timekeeper and he

10 will give you a one-minute warning just to let you

11 know. And hopefully everybody can try to keep it

12 generally within the five minutes.

13 Mr. Siefert, welcome.

14 MR. SIEFERT: Thank you. Being first is

15 an honor, I believe, or it's sort of like winning the

16 lottery.

17 But I am the Economic Development Council

18 Executive Director of Citrus County and represent the

19 region in explaining the efforts that go into our

20 working as a community and the effect of Progress

21 Energy on our environment.

22 We are known as the Nature Coast; we have

23 in excess of 500,000 visitors that come here because

24 of the quality of life and the environment and the

25 manatees that winter here, and the seven rivers. We
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1 have numerous springs, a very public -- the largest

2 single fish and wildlife state park is here in the

3 State and we're building a three sisters springs.

4 So the environment is extremely important

5 to Citrus County and its economic future. And

6 Progress Energy and their predecessors have been major

7 participants in protecting that environment because

8 the potential for their existing nuclear power plant

9 and the future ones must be cognizant of the potential

10 for environmental issues that come up.

11 So they have been very proactive in

12 addressing and helping the community, the economic

13 development, the county commissioners, the cities of

14 Inverness and Crystal River, and local government.

15 And we have a very active and vocal 20/20

16 organizations that is extremely concerned that we

17 maintain the quality of life here and the environment.

18 And we applaud Progress Energy on what

19 they've done in the past. It is -- we have their

20 assurances that they will continue to do that in the

21 future in the two plants in Levy County because we're

22 contiguous counties and the waters in one go -- flow

23 back and forth.

24 So we are pleased to be a supporter of

25 Progress Energy and their application, and we urge you
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1 to consider their track record of environmental

2 support and recognition of how important it is to this

3 county.

4 Thank you very much.

5 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you, Mr. Siefert.

6 Dr. Ringenberg. Dr. Ringenberg, please.

7 DR. RINGENBERG: Good afternoon. Thank

8 you for the opportunity to speak today.

9 I'm speaking to you both as a pediatrician

10 in Florida for over 30 years, and I'm also speaking to

11 you as the President of Physicians for Social

12 Responsibility, which is the largest physician-led

13 organization in the country looking at the greatest

14 threats to health and human survival.

15 And our mantra at PSR is to prevent what

16 can't be cured. And we know that there's no cure for

17 radiation exposure and/or ingestion. This is a

18 medical problem of vast dimensions and demands much

19 more attention I think than it's getting. I realize

20 that's what the main state of today's conversation is

21 about but the National Academy of Sciences Bureau 7

22 Report stated very clearly -- and I think there's no

23 question -- there is no safe level of exposure to

24 radiation and that even low doses of radiation can

25 cause cancer.
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1 And also out of that study came that

2 radiation can also lead to heart disease and also

3 neurologic disease like stroke. And that children

4 that are born to parents that have been exposed to

5 radiation -- and this is coming out very clearly now

6 in Chernobyl and will probably be coming out of Japan

7 as well in the next generations -- are affected by

8 those radiation exposures.

9 Children are 10 to 20 times more sensitive

10 to cancer-producing effects of radiation than are

11 adults. And fetuses -- babies in utero -- are

12 thousands of times more sensitive due to rapidly

13 dividing cells that make them very, very vulnerable to

14 serious genetic mutations like Downs Syndrome, spinal

15 and heart defects, cleft lip, cleft pallet,

16 hydrocephalic, water on the brain, thyroid disease,

17 and other congenital malformations.

18 It's now beginning four years after

19 Chernobyl that the large increases of thyroid cancers

20 are being seen in children and adolescents and the

21 increase in newborns with major and minor

22 developmental anomalies.

23 Can I present a picture or not? Can I

24 bring something up? Is that okay?

25 JUDGE KARLIN: Yeah, sure.
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1 DR. RINGENBERG: I think a picture is

2 worth a thousand words. These babies are being born

3 after the Chernobyl. Now this was taken in 1991.

4 The genetic defects caused by Chernobyl

5 will continue to trouble the world for a very long

6 time and most of the damaging effects will not become

7 apparent until the second and third generations.

8 Infant mortality rates in Finland, Sweden,

9 and Norway from the Chernobyl fallouts have caused an

10 increase in infant mortality -- not morbidity,

11 mortality, death -- by 16 percent. There's been an

12 increase in brain tumors in children less than three-

13 years-of-age in the Ukraine and it's been estimated at

14 close to a million deaths are attributable to the

15 Chernobyl catastrophe. And Chernobyl is far from

16 over.

17 What happened in Japan is not only

18 impacting current families living there but also

19 affecting generations to come. Radiation accumulates

20 year after year in the human body, as well as other

21 animals and plants, and causes breaks in chromosomes,

22 altering our DNA, altering the very essence of what

23 makes us human in gene mutations and cancers that will

24 be -- cause five-to-70 years after exposure.

25 So we're not seeing a uptick in cancer now
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1 in Japan and we won't now for a while; five-to-70

2 years I think we'll start seeing the cancer increase

3 in Japan.

4 We know that childhood leukemia and brain

5 tumors occur more frequently in the vicinity of

6 nuclear power plants and that women as a group -- and

7 this is something that's just come out -- that women,

8 as a group, suffer significantly more from the impact

9 of ionizing radiation than do men. 50 percent greater

10 incidence of cancer and 50 percent greater rate of

11 death from cancer among women compared to men exposed

12 to the same dose of radiation.

13 So my passion --

14 MR. FLYNTZ: One minute.

15 DR. RINGENBERG: One minute? Nuclear

16 power is not the answer to global warming; it's not

17 clean; it is not green; it is not safe; and it is not

18 renewable.

19 Everyone in this room is a parent, a

20 grandparent, an aunt, an uncle, at least you know a

21 kid. And I think that it is our responsibility and

22 our obligation, to do everything in our power to

23 protect our most precious resource, and that's the

24 children, the future of this world.

25 Nuclear power plants carry a risk of harm
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1 to public health that is too great to justify their

2 continued existence. For the sake of the world's

3 children and generations that follow, we must

4 discontinue operating and building new power plants,

5 nuclear power plants. There is no other choice for

6 the sake of future generations. Thank you.

7 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you. Sarah Berger,

8 Ms. Berger.

9 MS. BERGER: I would like to read my

10 statement. And this is --

11 JUDGE KARLIN: Yes, ma'am, thank you.

12 MS. BERGER: One copy.

13 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. Well, we'll put this

14 in the file, make sure it's in the file.

15 MS. BERGER: All right. Honorable Judges,

16 the history of the Greenways -- now this is four pages

17 but I want to read it into the record, but you're

18 getting a copy of it.

19 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. Well, five minutes,

20 do your best.

21 MS. BERGER: All right.

22 JUDGE KARLIN: It will definitely be in

23 the record whether you finish read it or not, so don't

24 worry about that.

25 MS. BERGER: All right. The history of
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1 the Greenways and Trails land in Florida now requested

2 by Progress Energy Florida to build a barge slip to

3 receive materials for two nuke plants, Levy County, to

4 build two pipelines across the Cross Florida Barge

5 Canal to carry their cooling water 15 miles to the

6 Crystal River plant.

7 The barge canal was stopped at 12 foot

8 deep by 150 foot wide January 22nd, 1991 by resolution

9 of Governor Chiles and the Cabinet. It hit saltwater

10 at the 12 foot depths and would have put salt into the

11 freshwater aquifer used by the state. PEF plans to

12 excavate an additional 10 feet below the present depth

13 of 12 feet for the barge slip and the pipes. This is

14 in CH2MHill, 28 pages that the NRC sent me, what their

15 plans are.

16 Additionally, they state they planned to

17 locate this barge clip in tract 2000-1. Am I too

18 close to this mike for the frequency here?

19 JUDGE KARLIN: No, it seems fine.

20 MS. BERGER: Great, thank you. I'm glad

21 to see the big guns here.

22 As they plan to locate this barge slip in

23 tract 2000-1, which is deeded by warranty deed to

24 Florida as Inglis Recreation Area called "eleven

25 picnic sites," they plan to run their pipes west,
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1 thereby violating the deed by warranty deed to Florida

2 as Inglis Recreation Area 2000-2, called "playground

3 area." Levy Deed Book 105, pages 20 to 22, and the

4 Citrus County Book 219, page 707.

5 The westerly pipes, many on uplands

6 adjoining the canal, on Greenways and Trails lands,

7 were not deeded to Florida but were called "perpetual

8 easement" for construction, operation and maintenance

9 of the Barge Canal, recorded in various deed books in

10 Levy county. These lands are included in the stoppage

11 of further excavation of the Barge Canal.

12 Public law 101-640, dated November 1990,

13 under the Cross Florida Barge Canal, this is what the

14 federal Corps of Engineers required of the state of

15 Florida.

16 Authorization: The Barge Canal project

17 located between the Gulf of Mexico and the Atlantic

18 Ocean shall be deauthorized by operation of law

19 immediately upon the governor and Cabinet of the state

20 of Florida, adopting a resolution specifically

21 agreeing on behalf of the state of Florida referring

22 to the state and all the terms.

23 Transfer of project lands. They are

24 directed to transfer to the state all lands acquired

25 by the Secretary and the facilities and the state
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1 shall agree to hold the U.S. harmless from any claims.

2 The state shall agree to preserve to

3 preserve and maintain a greenway corridor which shall

4 be open to the public for compatible recreation and

5 conservation activities and which shall be continuous,

6 except for areas referred to in (A) and (C) of this

7 paragraph. Such greenways corridor shall not be less

8 than 300 yards wide except for the following areas,

9 and it lists them.

10 MR. FLYNTZ: One minute.

11 MS. BERGER: What?

12 MR. FLYNTZ: One minute.

13 MS. BERGER: Oh, God. Give me a second

14 chance so that I can tell you this, please, so that

15 the audience will know.

16 JUDGE KARLIN: Here's what we're going to

17 try to do on that. Certainly, you know, don't take

18 this time off of her.

19 We have 39 people signed up for this

20 afternoon.

21 MS. BERGER: That are registered?

22 JUDGE KARLIN: Yes, ma'am. And to give

23 everybody five minutes, that will cut it pretty close.

24 So what we could -- what I hope to do is if at the end

25 when everybody's done, you could come back up and
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1 finish, have another five minutes and present some

2 more.

3 But rest assured, it's in writing and we

4 will read it.

5 MS. BERGER: I know you will.

6 JUDGE KARLIN: So you get five minutes and

7 then we're going to go the others. And you can come

8 back later if we have time, Ms. Berger.

9 MS. BERGER: Okay. We've still got

10 another minute, then.

11 Well, the state of Florida resolution was

12 signed by the Governor Chiles and the Cabinet January

13 22nd, 1991 and he agreed to all the terms. It was --

14 there's no doubt about it, it was signed by the

15 Cabinet.

16 Now Progress Energy plans to transport

17 their nuclear building materials up the Barge Canal to

18 a planned boat slip. There's never been a barge that

19 made it up the Barge Canal at this 12 foot depth. The

20 Aiple, only half loaded, went aground just east of the

21 Highway 19 bridge. It had to be offloaded and floated

22 off at high tide the next day.

23 The protected manatees use the barge

24 canal. Florida is opening up a certain lawsuit

25 because there are teeth in this law that says you
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don't -- you violate this resolution you're going to

get sued by the federal people.

But there's no reason to if you

understand. We don't have to repeat history twice in

order to stay clear.

JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. You're going to

finish you sentence but time is up.

MS. BERGER: I don't know where I was but

I signed it Sarah E. "Betty" Berger.

JUDGE KARLIN: Okay.

MS. BERGER: In case I had to use my legal

name.

JUDGE KARLIN: Of course.

MS. BERGER: But people who knows me as

Betty.

JUDGE KARLIN: All right, great. Well,

Ms. Berger, if we have time and you want to stay we'll

give you some more time.

MS. BERGER: I will stay here. I doubt

you'll have time with 39 people.

JUDGE KARLIN: Well, we have an evening

session as well, you know. I know that's a burden.

MS. BERGER: You mean you want me to come

back?

JUDGE KARLIN: Well, I'm sorry.
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1 have an evening session. You don't have to if you

2 don't want to.

3 MS. BERGER: I registered for the

4 afternoon one.

5 JUDGE KARLIN: All right, all right.

6 Well, you can register for the evening, too, if you

7 want to.

8 Next we have Ms. Fuller, I believe -- M.

9 Fuller.

10 MR. FULLER: Michael.

11 JUDGE KARLIN: Or Michael Fuller; I'm

12 sorry.

13 MR. FULLER: M. Fuller.

14 JUDGE KARLIN: M. Fuller.

15 MR. FULLER: And I'm a Citrus County

16 resident. I was employed in nuclear power from 1979

17 to 2002. I was mostly at Westinghouse plants. I was

18 a licensed operator and a simulator instructor.

19 And based on my experience where I worked

20 at the Seabrook Nuclear Power Plant, I kind of

21 suspect, since the persons initiating this action are

22 generally opposed to the construction of this plant,

23 it's probable that no amount of analysis or discussion

24 of environmental impacts will be adequate to them

25 unless it results in the denial of this license.
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1 I think Progress is to be commended on

2 choosing the more inland rural Levy location instead

3 of the Crystal River complex and the Gulf waterways,

4 especially in light of what we've recently seen with

5 weather and seismological events relating to large

6 bodies of salt water.

7 Additionally, the AP1000 standardized

8 Westinghouse design implies more passive designs that

9 use things such as gravity, lessening the need for

10 active sources of motor force -- in other words, like

11 pumps -- that are subject to failure and,

12 additionally, can become sources of leakage. So I see

13 this as a more friendly design to the environment.

14 I also worked at Wolf Creek. That was a

15 previous SNUPPS, or Standardized Nuclear Design before

16 the API000. It was a model of simplicity and

17 efficiency compared to other types of Westinghouse

18 plants.

19 Additionally, the standardized

20 Westinghouse design at Levy will require that any

21 safety-related changes, repairs and issues be

22 addressed and approved by Westinghouse. And I see

23 this as reducing the do-it-yourself approach we see at

24 non-standardized reactors.

25 Although initially expensive in
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1 construction, the fuel for these plants is

2 comparatively much cheaper than fossil plants and

3 after operation electricity costs are likely to

4 decrease. I'm saying this based on the city of San

5 Antonio which enjoys some of the lowest electrical

6 costs in the United States. They receive a majority

7 of their power from the South Texas project.

8 And, finally, operation of the Levy plant

9 will allow the retirement of the ancient Crystal River

10 1 and 2 fossil plants and this will be a much more

11 environmentally friendly impact for this area.

12 So thank you for hearing me out.

13 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you, Mr. Fuller.

14 Mandy Hancock, Ms. Hancock?

15 MS. HANCOCK: Thank you. My name is Mandy

16 Hancock -- pardon my voice. I am a High Risk Energy

17 Organizer with the Southern Alliance for Clean Energy.

18 We're a regional nonprofit organization with members

19 here in Florida in Progress Energy Service region and

20 across the southeast concerned about the impact energy

21 choices have on our health, economy, and environment.

22 Thank you for this opportunity to speak.

23 I'm also a resident of Gainesville,

24 Florida, living within 50 miles of the proposed

25 nuclear reactors. SACE disagrees with Progress Energy
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1 and the Nuclear Regulatory Commission's

2 characterization in the Draft Environmental Impact

3 Statement that the impacts of the Levy nuclear project

4 on the water systems in the area will be small.

5 A recent report by the Energy and Water in

6 a Warming World Initiative outlines the current

7 threats that the existing electricity infrastructure

8 poses on our nation's water resources.

9 It mentions, for instance, that nuclear

10 reactors are the most water-intensive, both in terms

11 of water withdrawal and consumption and compares them

12 to other energy options that the reliability -- I'm

13 sorry -- options -- and that the reliability of the

14 existing nuclear reactors during times of drought have

15 already demonstrated failures.

16 This report also discusses the southeast's

17 unique challenges when it comes to protecting water

18 resources in a region plagued by droughts. A copy of

19 the executive summary is included, and I will pass the

20 documents that I have to the woman in the back.

21 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay, fine.

22 MS. HANCOCK: It is easy to illustrate the

23 real impacts that nuclear energy has on water by

24 looking at the two new APl000 reactors proposed for

25 Turkey Point. Florida Power and Light's projected
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1 increase for water demand in Miami Dade County by 2025

2 includes a 35 percent increase for public and

3 commercial needs, and a whopping 3,224 percent

4 increase for thermal electric power.

5 Just as this doesn't make sense for Miami

6 Dade, neither does it make sense to commit 1.5 million

7 gallons of water per day -- of groundwater per day for

8 cooling purposes at the Levy County site, and that's

9 the figure from the Draft Environmental Impact

10 Statement.

11 In South Carolina, Duke Energy, which aims

12 to merge with Progress, has also proposed two new

13 AP1000 reactors for their lead project. In their

14 licensing application, Duke states the two new

15 reactors will withdraw, during normal use, 50-to-86

16 million gallons of water per day from the Broad River.

17 Overall consumptive loss will be approximately 50-to-

18 70 percent, or 35-to-41 million gallons per day.

19 Duke's application also mentions that the

20 average surface water use, public and industrial, in

21 Cherokee County was 8.4 million gallons per day. This

22 means that on a daily basis the Lee plant could use 6-

23 to-10 times the amount of surface water used by all

24 other users in the county combined.

25 Just as we objected to the NRC on the Lee
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1 County reactors, we believe the Levy project will also

2 have large impacts on the surrounding water resources.

3 Instead we propose alternative such as energy

4 efficiency and renewable energy that will have little

5 to no impact on nearby water sources.

6 A recent report by Synapse Energy

7 Economics discusses energy choices that would not only

8 protect water but would also be more economically

9 viable solutions for Florida's energy future.

10 I've included also an excerpt from that

11 report and links are provided to all sources I've

12 provided. Thank you.

13 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. Thank you, Ms.

14 Hancock. Casimir Plocharczyk.

15 MR. PLOCHARCZYK: "Plu-har-check."

16 JUDGE KARLIN: "Plu-har-check."

17 MR. PLOCHARCZYK: Very good.

18 JUDGE KARLIN: I'm sorry.

19 MR. PLOCHARCZYK: I want to thank you all

20 for having me here. I'm Casimir S. Plocharczyk, Jr.

21 and I want to thank all the people that are here for

22 this meeting because it looks like it's very well

23 attended. And I promise not to go over my five

24 minutes.

25 I'm not a lawyer; I'm not a scientist;
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1 I'm a retired school teacher. I've been a Florida

2 resident since 1946, both in Marion County and

3 recently my wife and I have a condo over here on

4 Hunter Springs.

5 I want to talk about the Floridan. That's

6 the Florida aquifer and the Springs that are in this

7 area. I want to tell you a little story that's true.

8 In 1956, when I was 12 years old, right

9 out here the Big Spring -- I don't know how many

10 people know about the Big Spring, the big one out

11 there -- beautiful eel grass, beautiful crystal clear

12 water, 50 feet down. As a rite of passage every 12-

13 year-old that knew anything about springs had to dive,

14 go through the cavern and come out the other side and

15 then you were "a man."

16 Okay. I did that when I was 12 years old.

17 There was no EPA, 1970; there was no NRC, 1975; and

18 everything was different then; okay? I'm diving

19 through the spring down there, just a mask; that's all

20 I have; right? Go into the hole, it's clear; you can

21 see the light out there. And I'm going through there

22 and I say what is that school of minnows doing down

23 here, way down here. Oh, oh, that's not minnows;

24 that's shrimp. I said what are shrimp doing -- oh, I

25 can't go; let's get up on the other side.
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1 Get up on the other side; right? 50 feet

2 up there's a manatee and her calf over there and I

3 come up and oh; right? And I did it. And the manatee

4 said thank you. But those little shrimp live down in

5 the Florida aquifer. They live in springs; they live

6 in caves. They're all -- this area -- the Florida

7 aquifer is like a karst Swiss cheese area.

8 In Marion County I saw some other shrimp

9 in caves. When you go out there and you go caving

10 around and there's water under there, the Florida

11 aquifer is in there and you see blind -- blind shrimp,

12 blind fish, and everything like that.

13 Anyway, to make a point, I read -- I'm not

14 a scientist; I'm not a lawyer; I'm a concerned Florida

15 citizen. And I've seen change since 1946, 1956, that

16 has been pretty impactful.

17 The dirt out here in the Big Spring, you

18 can't even find the spring now out there. It's hard

19 to find. Nutrients, you know, and then everything

20 like that.

21 Out there where the plant is going to be

22 built, the aquifer is very shallow. As I understand

23 it, they're going to dig two 100-foot trenches to make

24 bedrock and put the Westinghouse plants over there.

25 That's going to have a big impact on the Florida
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1 aquifer.

2 Stephen J. Walsh, United States Geological

3 Service, Freshwater Macrofauna of the Florida Karst

4 Habitats, lists numerous endangered, threatened, rare

5 and species of concern that I didn't read anywhere in

6 all the reading I did at home about the Environmental

7 Impact Statement.

8 I saw black bear; I saw manatees; I saw

9 Indigo snakes, and everything like that. What about

10 those shrimp that are endangered? What about those

11 other creatures that live in the Florida aquifer?

12 I think a little bit more concern must be

13 given to the Florida aquifer because if the springs

14 that are in the Cross Barge Canal portion over there

15 are impacted by salt water, if two 100-foot holes are

16 dug and no one is tracing the water -- I'm a

17 fisherman. That's what I do now. I'm retired; I

18 fish. I would love -- love to see where during the

19 construction progress, if that occurs, where the water

20 -- where the -- if you put some dye in that pit;

21 right? Where would it come out? Would it come out

22 over here at the Big Springs, the big hole? Where

23 would it come out? Where would it come out? And what

24 about those creatures that live in there? That needs

25 to be addressed.
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1 The Florida aquifer and the species that

2 live in the Florida aquifer, the caves, the karst

3 system, I didn't see it. Now maybe I missed it.

4 Maybe later on somebody that's smart that knows about

5 water, right, could say, "Hey, we've taken care of

6 that; we've addressed the concerns; don't worry about

7 it."

8 But that's why I'm here. Joe Public is

9 here that he's just really, really concerned about

10 what's going to happen to the Florida aquifer. That's

11 it. Thank you very much. Thank you all for

12 attending, too.

13 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you, sir.

14 Ms. Alice Gridley, please? And could our

15 timekeeper speak up a little bit on the one-minute

16 warning because sometimes people are talking and it's

17 hard to hear.

18 Ms. Gridley?

19 MS. GRIDLEY: Good afternoon. I'm a

20 retiree; I live in Gainesville, Florida; again, 50

21 miles from here. I was in management for over 20

22 years at IBM and it included starting and running

23 their site-wide management quality program with a

24 5,000 person site and we were handling space shots at

25 the time.
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1 I appreciate your having this hearing

2 because I feel it's important, not just for this

3 region, but for the entire state of Florida.

4 I will not be talking about the cost of

5 nuclear construction, operating, fixing mistakes, and

6 eventual attempts to clean up; long range health

7 problems from radioactive leaks; impact to the

8 wetlands; the unbelievable risks to our water supply.

9 The water table for the Florida aquifer is immediately

10 below this site. The known risks from major storms

11 and flooding, such as hurricane category 5's, or 34,

12 33 foot storm surge. The concern for climate change

13 and incidents are increasing in frequency and in

14 power. And, I'm not even going to address the fact

15 that the main electric lines go south to Tampa so that

16 we, in this area, have all the risk and none of the

17 benefit.

18 I will comment on Progress Energy's

19 management. Contrary to their own Crystal River plant

20 safety information document where they call themselves

21 environmental partners, they say, quote: "Dear

22 neighbor, our first commitment to our Nature Coast

23 neighbors is to offer it the Crystal River Nuclear

24 Plant safely."

25 Apparently they did not take that
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1 commitment seriously enough. In an ill-fated attempt

2 to save their company $15 million, they put Progress

3 Energy's profit.ahead of public safety.

4 Panel 3 broke in October 2009; panel 5

5 broke in March after they repaired panel 3; panel 1

6 broke in July while they tried to figure out how to

7 fix panel 5.

8 Insurance might cover up to $2.25 billion

9 of the $2.5 billion mistake, but this for-profit

10 company is counting on the public to pay for the 25

11 percent of the cost of their mistake. That equates to

12 $625 million.

13 This was not the only mistake. The Union

14 of Concerned Scientists quoted: Out of 14 of what

15 they refer to as near-misses, 4 of them took place in

16 plants owned and operated by Progress Energy. The

17 scientists advocate investigating and clarifying

18 whether the demand for profit interferes with public

19 safety.

20 I sincerely hope Progress Energy's focus

21 on their own process over public safety makes you as

22 uncomfortable as it does me.

23 Thank you very much for listening.

24 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you, Ms. Gridley.

25 Norman Hopkins -- Mr. Hopkins? Is Mr.
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1 Hopkins here, Norman Hopkins?

2 (No response.)

3 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. We'll pass over that

4 one. I may try to call that name again a little later

5 and see if he's late or something. So we'll go to Mr.

6 John Rayhill. Mr. John Rayhill?

7 (No response.)

8 JUDGE KARLIN: Mr. Rayhill doesn't appear

9 to be here either.

10 Ms. Josh Whooten, Mr. Josh Whooten?

11 UNIDENTIFIED MALE: He's not here.

12 JUDGE KARLIN: He's not here.

13 UNIDENTIFIED MALE: He'll be here later.

14 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. Well, I'm going to

15 circle those names and we may be able to come back to

16 them later if we have time.

17 Teresa Waldron.

18 MS. WALDRON: No. I'm set. I don't have

19 anything new to say.

20 JUDGE KARLIN: Oh, okay, Ms. Waldron.

21 Thank you. We'll just check that off.

22 Christine Lin, Ms. Lin; okay.

23 MS. LIN: Hi, thank you for the

24 opportunity to speak.

25 JUDGE KARLIN: Good, we've got somebody
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1 here.

2 MS. LIN: In 2011, the Keetch-Byram

3 average drought index for Florida was 649 on a scale

4 of 0 to 800. Governor Scott declared a state of

5 emergency and there are no signs of this drought

6 lifting.

7 If 1.5 million gallons of water are being

8 taken from the Florida aquifer for operation of the

9 proposed plants, this will have a negative impact on

10 water quality and aquatic environments in the

11 surrounding areas. It will also negatively affect

12 federally listed endangered species like manatees.

13 The Doctors and Physicians for Responsible

14 Medicine -- thank you for speaking -- had valid points

15 about the risk of radiation.

16 Crystal River has had several radiation

17 leaks this past year due to delamination of cracks --

18 or cracks. Progress Energy took reckless risks when

19 they ignored expert advice and tried to self-manage

20 construction at Crystal River.

21 ,Nuclear plants nationwide have also leaked

22 tritium into waterways and rivers, which is a

23 radioactive substance.

24 I don't believe Progress Energy can be

25 trusted to keep the public safe from radiation and our
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1 aquatic environment safe from radiation.

2 In conclusion, it is a myth that radiation

3 can be cleaned up. For human life span purposes,

4 radiation is forever, and if there is an accident due

5 to, for example, a hurricane or a tornado, very common

6 occurrences in Florida, our homeowners insurance will

7 not cover radioactive contamination. We will be

8 forced to evacuate our homes with no recourse.

9 Given Progress Energy's track record in

10 Crystal River I don't think that's a safe proposal for

11 us or the aquatic environment. Thank you.

12 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you, Ms. Lin.

13 Christine Mendoza -- Mendoca? Christine

14 Mendoca?

15 (No response.)

16 JUDGE KARLIN: All right, I'll circle that

17 one. Ryan Bell, Mr. Ryan Bell?

18 MR. BELL: Thank you for the opportunity

19 to speak today. My name is Ryan Bell. I am a local

20 business owner of restaurants in several northern and

21 central Florida counties.

22 In interest of full disclosure, Progress

23 Energy has been a customer and we do cater for them

24 and do catering services for them throughout the past

25 several years and hopefully in the future.
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1 Currently I also serve as a sitting Levy

2 County Commissioner and I'm here today in the capacity

3 as a private citizen and business owner. I want to

4 make it very clear that I do not speak for the board;

5 that I'm speaking for themself.

6 I stand in support of Progress Energy's

7 application for a combined operating license for this

8 proposed power plant facilities in Levy County for

9 several reasons.

10 As an agricultural county, Levy County has

11 traditionally suffered from a low tax base,

12 accompanying economic and stagnant growth common to

13 agricultural communities. Few industries with growth

14 potential and interest in the local community look to

15 counties like Levy to locate their facilities.

16 In addition, Levy County did not enjoy the

17 level of prosperous growth familiar to other Florida

18 counties prior to the economic downturn. Economic

19 condition over the past several years have only

20 intensified the economic conditions for Levy County's

21 government and citizens.

22 The proposed Levy County power plant

23 facilities offer much-needed jobs and economic growth

24 that could lead to a level of prosperity on a scale

25 not seen in this county in many generations.
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1 The additional tax base that this power

2 plant could represent will also provide funds that

3 local governments can use to provide higher levels of

4 service for Levy County citizens in many areas.

5 As long as all the rules are followed and

6 requirements are met, approval of this application

7 represents overall benefit to Levy County. Progress

8 Energy's history as an upstanding community supporter

9 in Citrus and Levy Counties, through its operation of

10 the Crystal River facilities, also speaks in favor of

11 the proposed Levy County power plants.

12 There is no reason to think that Progress

13 Energy's community spirit will not continue to expand

14 with additional power plant facilities in Levy County.

15 For these reasons and more, I support the

16 Levy County power plant facilities proposed by

17 Progress Energy and urge you to approve the Progress

18 Energy's application for a combined operating license.

19 I thank you for looking out for Levy

20 County's interest and your time and attention to this

21 matter. Thank you.

22 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you, Mr. Bell. Thank

23 you.

24 Mr. Danny Stevens? Mr. Stevens?

25 MR. STEVENS: Good afternoon. I'm Danny
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1 Stevens. This year I happen to serve as Levy County

2 chairperson. I've been a member of the Levy County

3 Commission since the year of 2000, so I've got a

4 little bit of history here with Progress Energy.

5 And today I'd like to talk on two separate

6 issues. One, as what the board talked about January

7 3rd to come here today, and me, as a citizen of Levy

8 County, if I could.

9 JUDGE KARLIN: Yes.

10 MR. STEVENS: On January 3rd, the Board of

11 County Commissioners, by consensus, said that we

12 agreed with the decision of the Nuclear Regulatory

13 Commission on their findings to approve the proposed

14 nuclear power plants in Levy County. With that being

15 said, I'm going to swap hats and as a citizen of Levy

16 County, born and raised in Levy County all my life, I

17 tend to believe that whether it be good or bad, that

18 sometimes government can regulate themselves too much.

19 And what I mean by that is this: Is that

20 the potentials for what I see here as the points of

21 contentions, whether it be too warm of water, too cool

22 of water, vice versa, being a resident of Levy County

23 all my life, I've seen shallow waters get way hotter

24 than some of the waters where it goes in or comes out.

25 And I think that there needs to be a lot
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1 of discretion with some of the factors that plays into

2 the rulings and the decision makings as to whether

3 this is a -- whether this is approved or denied.

4 I believe it would be a great impact to

5 Levy County, and as far as some of the myths that may

6 be going on or saying about the world could come to an

7 end if this or that takes place, you know, Levy County

8 is just across the Barge Canal from Citrus County with

9 their power plants.

10 And as a gentleman once said a few years

11 ago, that if alternative fuel sources was the answer

12 then how come we don't already have that. I believe

13 if it was financially feasible we would've already had

14 the solars all over the place, the wind turbines and

15 everything else that goes along with it.

16 Nuclear, from what little bit I've been

17 educated, happens to be a cheaper way to go. Yes, it

18 has its dangers but so does every other thing. And

19 with that I'll close. And I thank you for your time

20 and I appreciate it.

21 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you, Mr. Stevens.

22 The next person who registered is Lee

23 Bidgood -- Bidgood. Mr. Bidgood?

24 MR. BIDGOOD: Thank you, and good

25 afternoon. My name is Lee Bidgood, Jr. I'm 90-years
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1 old, a World War II veteran of seven campaigns and two

2 invasions. For the last 25 years I've been an

3 environmental activist.

4 According to the Army Corps of Engineers,

5 this proposed nuclear plant would wipe out a shocking

6 765 acres of wetlands. The project would take Florida

7 back 100 years to a time when we viewed wetlands as

8 worthless until drained or filled.

9 Let's save some wetlands. We don't have

10 tsunamis, so far as I know, in the Gulf, but we do

11 have hurricanes. A category 5 storm arriving at high

12 tide could generate a huge storm surge to flood and

13 damage the plant. We could be just as unlucky as

14 Japan at the Fukushimi Daiichi plant. Let's not

15 gamble.

16 One more point. $22 billion of mostly

17 taxpayers' and ratepayers' money that we financed the

18 nuclear plant could be spent on rooftop solar or other

19 small solar projects that would bring many, many more

20 jobs to Florida as a state. At about $40,000 per

21 system, which is an estimate which could change, 22

22 billion would pay for over a half million -- half

23 million of solar installations.

24 The Sunshine State ought to go solar.

25 Thank you.
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1 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you, sir.

2 Ms. Theodora Rusnick -- Rusnak?

3 MS. RUSNAK: Yeah, good.

4 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you, Ms. Rusnak.

5 MS. RUSNAK: Good afternoon, gentlemen.

6 I am Theodora Rusnak of the Citrus County Council.

7 Gentlemen, the council is a consortium of

8 19 homeowner associations, civic clubs, and

9 environmental groups in Citrus County. We were

10 incorporated as a nonprofit organization 30 years ago

11 and our combined membership is equal to about 10

12 percent of the 140,000 residents here in Citrus

13 County.

14 After researching the study the council

15 has been opposed to building of the two nuclear power

16 plants in Levy County. We believe this to be the

17 wrong plant in the wrong place and paid for in the

18 wrong way.

19 I realize for the purposes of today's

20 discussion we will really be dealing with the first

21 two of those.

22 The site chosen by Progress Energy is, as

23 you've already heard, a wetlands; a piney flood plain.

24 Progress Energy's plans are to excavate to

25 a depth of 100 feet for the footings for these plants.
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1 Now the Cross Florida Barge Canal, just a very short

2 distance away, was stopped -- the excavation on that

3 was stopped as excavation broke through the Floridan

4 aquifer after they got past 12 feet in depth. And so

5 now this construction technique is going to go down

6 almost 10 times that -- 9 times that distance.

7 Then they will fill in the area that the

8 plant buildings themselves will be on with an

9 artificially-created high ground, an area to be filled

10 to at least 8 feet above the current ground level.

11 Well, these and other construction

12 techniques that they plan to utilize will create a dam

13 in the unconfined aquifer below. That will then

14 change the way the surface water flows over the land

15 as well as creating tremendous diversions in the

16 aquifer.

17 You've heard a lot already and you will

18 continue to hear more from the other speakers. We've

19 acquired much the same data that's already presented;

20 I won't repeat that. But we do feel that the council

21 -- the council feels that the extensive water

22 extraction for plant operations, as well as all of

23 these construction impacts, will create irreversible

24 damage to the springs, the wetlands, and the wildlife

25 habitats on our Nature Coast.
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1 We take great pride in the fact that we

2 are the Nature Coast. We feel that this is something

3 which is to be cherished, to be protected and to be

4 preserved. Irreversible damage, like extinction to a

5 species, is not a small thing; it is forever. So this

6 is definitely the wrong place for this plant.

7 As for the overall safety operations of

8 this plant, it gives our members no comfort that this

9 will be built under the auspices of Progress Energy

10 whose corporate judgment has brought a whole knew

11 meaning to the term "do-it-yourself disasters."

12 How can we trust the decision-making

13 abilities of a corporate entity that chose quick and

14 dirty and on the cheek for its Crystal River facility,

15 which is right in our back yard? We live in the

16 shadow of that plant. And took those tactics over

17 taking tried and true measures and going with

18 contractors that do that kind of repair work and that

19 kind of construction over, and over, and over again.

20 MR. FLYNTZ: One minute, please.

21 MS. RUSNAK: Thank you.

22 Seeing them make those choices gives us no

23 comfort.

24 Furthermore, the whole question of that

25 nuclear power generation for electricity is suspect in
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1 our estimation because as a power source the nation

2 has yet to establish a state national repository for

3 the spent rods that will come from these plants.

4 Lastly, our membership continues to object

5 to having to pay for the construction of these plants

6 before they've ever been approved. And even if

7 approved, the company can still back out of choosing

8 not to build it and retain all of our money. We will

9 get no refund according to Florida legislation.

10 Thank you very much, gentlemen.

11 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you, Ms. Rusnak.

12 At this point I might just mention for

13 anyone who has come in since we started that if anyone

14 wants to speak or add their name to a list of

15 speakers, please see Ms. Culler in the back corner and

16 you can -- she'll register, put your name in there,

17 and we'll add you to the list. We're going through

18 this registration list in order.

19 And the next speaker we have who signed up

20 is Mr. Greg Wilson. Mr. Wilson?

21 MR. WILSON: I want to thank you all for

22 having the meeting today.

23 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you.

24 MR. WILSON: My name is Greg Wilson and I

25 live in Dunedin, Florida. And I'm starting a company
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1 that is based on a new type of wind energy. I have a

2 patent applied for -- for it. It's not a wind

3 turbine; it uses large sails to make electricity,

4 they're slow moving it.

5 When I was designing it I realized that

6 this is completely environmentally friendly. A bird

7 could fly into it, or whatever, and it won't hurt

8 anything.

9 My main concern about Progress Energy,

10 using their customers to finance the building of these

11 nuclear power plants is, that if I had a customer base

12 that I could use to build these to get money to build

13 my generators, I wouldn't be struggling right now. I

14 would be building generators and we wouldn't be having

15 this meeting because I would be able to produce enough

16 electricity that it would make this whole situation

17 obsolete before we even got started.

18 Progress Energy doesn't like to talk to

19 me; I've tried to get ahold of them several times. I

20 have talked to the Jacksonville Energy Company,

21 electric company, and their engineer called me back in

22 five minutes. It takes Progress Energy three weeks to

23 return my e-mails and they won't return my phone

24 calls. So I can see right now I'm fighting an uphill

25 battle against them.
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1 There's quite a number of reasons why not

2 to build them. You have the endangered species here.

3 This the main habitat area for endangered Black Bears,

4 and along with all the other animals and things that

5 are going on here.

6 The Gulf of Mexico is not immune to

7 tsunamis. They're very rare here but they do happen.

8 The meteorite or comet that extinguished the dinosaurs

9 65 million years ago landed on the edge of the Gulf of

10 Mexico and it put up a wave that probably -- well,

11 Florida wasn't here at the time but it would've

12 flooded the whole state.

13 There is a mountain in the Canary Islands,

14 that half the mountain is sliding off that could end

15 up falling into the Atlantic Ocean and will put up a

16 large tsunami which will take out Turkey Point and the

17 entire east coast of the United States.

18 There is also a fault line out in the Gulf

19 of Mexico that when BP was drilling their Macondo well

20 and the Deep Horizon blew up and sank, it did cause

21 earthquakes in the New Madras fault zone up in

22 Memphis, Tennessee. They started having earthquakes

23 within just a few days after that rig blew up. So the

24 whole fault line is connected all the way up and down

25 from almost up to Minnesota all the way down to Cuba.
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1 So anything could happen that could set that off and

2 cause earthquakes and tsunamis in this area.

3 There's also the issue of why are they

4 really building this when renewable energy could be a

5 lot cheaper? If I had the amount of money they're

6 going to spend on these power plants I could cover

7 most of the southeastern United States in wind energy

8 and then with an upgraded grid that President Obama

9 keeps talking about, we could turn it for electricity

10 around to wherever the wind is blowing.

11 Now my equipment can go high altitude,

12 which means that it will run almost 100 percent of the

13 time, rather than just a few hours at a time.

14 Wind turbines here in Florida have a hard

15 time paying for themselves because the wind is so

16 light and variable all the time. And they also are

17 hazardous to birds, especially the endangered -- the

18 large endangered species of birds, the egrets, and the

19 herons, and even the ugly turkey vultures that, you

20 know, nobody likes to see. Well, they're on the

21 endangered species list, also. They had a problem at

22 the Hillsborough County Federal Building where the

23 turkeys were taking over the building --

24 MR. FLYNTZ: One minute.

25 MR. WILSON: -- and it cost them hundreds
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1 of thousands of dollars a year to clean that up. So

2 anyway, it would stop all -- it wouldn't harm any of

3 those.

4 And then you have the storage, the dry

5 cask and the wet cask, which you have 80,000 years of

6 problems with the dry cask storage to deal with.

7 And I could go on for five hours so -- as

8 to the effects of my invention will do, and any day I

9 could run across and adventure -- an investor Chat

10 could basically halt this construction because it

11 would be obsolete altogether. So I appreciate you

12 listening to me and thank you very much.

13 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you, Mr. Wilson.

14 The next speaker is Mack Harris, Mack

15 Harris. Mr. Harris? Or is Mack Harris?

16 MR. HARRIS: Mack Harris -- just --

17 JUDGE KARLIN: Mr. Harris.

18 MR. HARRIS: It is Mack Sherman Harris.

19 My parents used a diminutive of my grandfather's name,

20 so Mack is a legal given name.

21 JUDGE KARLIN: Very good, sir.

22 MR. HARRIS: Thank you for the opportunity

23 to appear before the Board today. I would mention I

24 am retired -- I am retired. I live in Citrus County.

25 I'm retired from the electric power industry and I
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1 spent a career in the industry. I'm familiar with

2 coal plants, nuclear plants, gas turbines, combine

3 cycle plants, and all of the other large scale

4 electric power generation.

5 Each of these plants has its impact. Each

6 of these plants has an environmental impact and each

7 of these plants uses resources. Each one uses water.

8 I've heard a lot of discussion of water for cooling.

9 Every large scale steam electric generating plant in

10 the country uses water for cooling. That is the

11 generally-accepted way of cooling the plant.

12 From an environmental standpoint, I

13 support all forms of energy, including so-called

14 alternative energy; solar, nuclear, wind energy,

15 biomass.

16 I also recall in 1977, 35 years ago, going

17 to an Atomic Safety and Licensing Board hearing in

18 Raleigh, North Carolina. Attending the hearing and

19 hearing the gentleman named Amory Lovins, whose name

20 you may recognize -- Amory Lovins sitting there before

21 the panel, talking about how the plant that was being

22 proposed would not be needed because of solar, wind,

23 and biomass, and that that plant would not be needed

24 because these alternatives would take its place.

25 That plant recently sought a license
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1 extension. It has been operating for that 35 years.

2 Now, we're still talking -- probably about

3 30 years. We're still talking about solar and

4 alternatives and I consider myself a very ardent

5 environmentalist. I'm very concerned about the water

6 supply; about the ability of the state to support the

7 number of people who come in. But I also recognize

8 that there is a need for electricity to support our

9 increasingly complex and energy-dependent society.

10 And in my judgment -- and I caution it

11 in my judgment, having spent a career looking at the

12 various forms of electric generation, in my mind the

13 most environmentally friendly possible form of large-

14 scale energy production is a nuclear power plant.

15 And to me, when you talk about

16 environmental impacts of a new coal plant, both on the

17 mining and the burning of the coal, when you talk

18 about the use of natural gas, I differ strongly with

19 our current national policy of encouraging natural gas

20 plants simply because natural gas is a finite resource

21 that we are using up in a very bad way by turning it

22 into boiler fuel.

23 If you recall, the Carter administration

24 actually made the correct decision on natural gas by

25 forbidding the use of natural gas as a boiler fuel.
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Fast forward, we now encourage it and that's -- well,

I've heard, "Oh, it will be good for 100,years."

Well, in 100 years I hope we still have a society, and

I hope we still need petrol chemical feed stock so

that we can support our expanding population at that

point.

So in summary, gentlemen, my point very

simply is, that of all the environmental impacts taken

in totality, the nuclear plant makes the least impact

on the environment and is the best source. And I

encourage the licensing of this plant so that we can

move forward with it.

Thank you so much for your attention.

JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you, Mr. Harris.

Ms. Foster, Winnie Foster. Ms. Foster?

Winnie Foster?

and come

Hollins;

name is

Floridian

(No response.)

JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. We will circle that

back later and ask again.

Dixie Hollins -- Ms. Hollins? Mr.

I'm sorry.

MR. HOLLINS: Members of the Board, my

Dixie Hollins, I'm a third-generation

here in Citrus County.

My father and grandfather purchased the
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1 Hollinswood Ranch in 1942, which comprised of

2 approximately 18,000 acres which went from the

3 Withlacoochee River south to the Crystal River. We

4 have been in the cattle and timber business and

5 recently, in 1972, we started in the mining aggregate

6 business.

7 In the 1960's, Florida Power back then

8 came to us and bought 5,000 acres and an access road

9 a quarter mile wide going from U.S. 19 to their

10 property, which they built two coal-fired plants and

11 two -- and one nuclear plant and then later two more

12 coal-fired plants.

13 My father had a house there on his

14 property and I also had a house there on my property.

15 And we watched Progress Energy grow and build

16 transmission lines, and railroads, and access roads,

17 and hired and supported this community.

18 But I'm here to talk to you about actually

19 living on the property, dealing with Florida Power and

20 Progress Energy, and the cooperation they gave not

21 only myself but my father in the timber and the cattle

22 business and some actual things that happened there.

23 At one time -- I can't remember the year -

24 - we had over 18 inches of rain there in two weeks.

25 Progress Energy and Florida Power at that time
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1 cooperated with us to help us drain the water off

2 these uplands, flat lands to the north so that it

3 would not have a direct impact on the 7,000 acres of

4 planted timber that was owned by us and Georgia

5 Pacific.

6 Later on they also built two cooling

7 towers and we were very concerned, as having 7,000

8 acres of planted pine on our property, with salt

9 drift. So we went to them and with their cooperation

10 they built monitors on our property and tested those

11 monitors to make sure that there was no salt drift

12 impact on our property and especially the planted pine

13 trees. And they continued on that and I believe they

14 are still continuing that.

15 We also watched them build fish hatcheries

16 to offset the impacts to the, I believe, one or two

17 degrees of the water out in the Gulf of Mexico from

18 the discharge canals on the discharging of the warm

19 water. We also watched them build many cooling towers

20 to offset this impact.

21 We have been very concerned with the

22 security out there and they've, since the beginning of

23 their plant, they have had excellent security. Since

24 9/11, they have extremely security of their property,

25 and I lived on that property until about 10, 12 years
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1 ago. I lived there, breathed there, and went to work

2 every day with Progress Energy next to us and

3 surrounding us.

4 They have a security system there; they

5 have a nuclear sirening system there. And if there

6 was an issue there, whether it was a community issue

7 or an issue with us, they came to the front page and

8 took care of it.

9 And I support this Levy County site; I

10 support the --

11 MR. FLYNTZ: One minute, please.

12 MR. HOLLINS: Yes, sir.

13 I support the, continuing of Progress

14 Energy at Crystal River and also at the Levy County

15 site. And I can assure you that they abated the

16 noise, and they abated lighting, lightning -- excuse

17 me -- lighting there, and they abated any

18 opportunities they had to make sure that there was no

19 impact to this community.

20 I support this project and I stand behind

21 them 100 percent. I have lived and believed through

22 them over 30 years. Thank you very much.

23 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you, Mr. Hollins.

24 That's a very interesting statement.

25 Next we have Cathy Harrelson, Ms.
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1 Harrelson. Is Ms. Harrelson here at the moment?

2 (No response.)

3 JUDGE KARLIN: No? Okay. Whitney Markle

4 -- Whitey Markle? Mr. Markle? Thank you.

5 MR. MARKLE: Thank you, sir. I appreciate

6 you all having this hearing for us today.

7 Normally I would be speaking for the

8 Sierra Club but I don't -- I think they are a litigant

9 in this case. So I must tell you I own a residence in

10 Yankeetown and I fish for mullet, a very common fish

11 which is the bottom of the food chain.

12 JUDGE KARLIN: I might just add, the

13 Sierra Club is not a party --

14 MR. MARKLE: They're not?

15 JUDGE KARLIN: -- so you're good to talk.

16 MR. MARKLE: Okay. I am the Conservation

17 Chair for the Suwannee/St. Johns Sierra Club, which

18 encompasses this area.

19 Yankeetown, uniquely, is the only town

20 left on the Gulf without a condominium, and we're --

21 I am -- I don't know if I can speak for everybody

22 there, but we're quite proud of that. It's a quaint

23 little town and it's not urbanized; it's a nice place

24 to be on a bicycle or walking. It's also a nice place

25 to catch mullet with a cast net.
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1 The lady that represented the Doctors made

2 the case that human babies are sensitive to radiation,

3 and I imagine baby mullet would probably be sensitive

4 to radiation, and that's a concern for all of us that

5 fish in that area. We're here to talk about the

6 quality of the water and we're concerned that that

7 radiation could certainly affect the fish ecology.

8 Also, 3,000 acres is a huge parcel of land

9 in Levy County. It's in what's now called Piney Woods

10 or Pine Woods. It's listed as small impact. I feel

11 like it's a large impact, 3,000, especially when you

12 add that to the 5,000 acres that's going to be the

13 Tarmac Mine that's practically in place. It's not --

14 it's in appeals court but it is practically approved.

15 All it's waiting for now is the Corps of Engineers'

16 approval.

17 You put that -- that's 8,000 acres of

18 recharge that's not going to be happening anymore when

19 that plant goes in.

20 So if that's the case, then there must be

21 some way to -- if it's going to go through there's got

22 to be some way to replace that water and we don't feel

23 like mitigation is the right way to do that. False

24 wetlands have never worked as water mitigation.

25 That's a proven fact.
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1 The underlying issue here is growth and we

2 think that the growth is not going to be in Levy

3 County. Although they're going to use Levy County to

4 help that growth, they're going to use Levy County's

5 water, that growth is going to be further south. We

6 know that's what's happening in Florida. They're

7 building pipelines now.

8 And I hate to use this term, but it's a

9 popular term, they're going to "Californicate"

10 Florida. They're building a grid of pipelines to move

11 water around as they did in California. So it won't

12 matter where the water comes from; it will be all over

13 Florida.

14 And that means those areas that are far

15 too populated now will still have enough water to grow

16 even more. And with the addition of Tarmac, they'll

17 even have more line to build more roads to pipe them

18 into those areas that are already overpopulated.

19 Let me just finish by saying that I feel

20 that this is a way larger impact than what's been

21 described. And if it can be done, please protect that

22 water that's going to go into the good old Gulf of

23 Mexico and the Withlacoochee River. Thank you very

24 much.

25 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you, Mr. Markle.
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1 It is now 2:30 by my watch, so we've been

2 going I guess an hour-and-a-half, or so. And I think

3 it's a good maybe time to take a break of about 10

4 minutes.

5 So we will adjourn here for about 10

6 minutes and reconvene at 20 of. Thank you. The next

7 person to speak is Ms. Susan Woods is the next person

8 on the list that I have. Thank you.

9 (Off the record, 2:30 p.m.)

10 (Back on the record, 2:44 p.m.)

11 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. We're going to

12 reconvene. Could everyone take their seats, please.

13 We want to move along so everyone can get a chance to

14 do their statement, maximize our time.

15 I would like to call Ms. Susan Woods to

16 the front. Ms. Woods, is she here? She signed up.

17 Great, Ms. Woods.

18 And before we start, I think after Ms.

19 Woods I will try to go through the names of the people

20 who had registered earlier and see if they have

21 arrived late and we might ask them. And then we will

22 proceed with the people who've registered since we've

23 gotten here.

24 And also, once again, as we mentioned in

25 the beginning, our jurisdiction is this contention No.
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1 4, and it's in that Federal Register notice, and so

2 that's what we hold will be litigated in October and

3 we'll be focusing on.

4 And I know some of you have focused on

5 that, some of the issues there, so that's most helpful

6 to us.

7 So, Ms. Woods, please begin,; thank you.

8 MS. WOODS: I've left you copies of a

9 couple of reports. Alas, I only made two copies of

10 the thicker report, not knowing what to expect when I

11 got here today so I apologize for that.

12 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. So these are the

13 things that we found on our desk?

14 MS. WOODS: Yes.

15 JUDGE KARLIN: All right. Well, we'll put

16 them in the record. Thank you.

17 MS. WOODS: I am Susan Woods, President of

18 the Floridan Aquifer Legal Defense Organization. I

19 know you all are aware that building nuclear plants so

20 close to the Gulf of Mexico and on fragile coastal

21 ecosystems requires the utmost care in selecting sites

22 and plans for construction. Any mistakes that result

23 in damage to the Gulf Coast ecosystems will surely

24 create an uproar on the scale of the BP oil spill.

25 My mission today is to remind all of you

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS

1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com



770

1 that you have a responsibility not only to the folks

2 who will live within the shadow of the new nuclear

3 plants but also to those who cannot speak for

4 themselves, and who are perhaps not even recognized by

5 most of us. And for this reason I have given you

6 copies of a paper written by Stephen J. Walsh of the

7 U.S. Geological Survey entitled, "Freshwater

8 Macrofauna of Florida Karst Habitats."

9 The aim of the paper is to emphasize

10 several very important points. First, you must

11 understand that what affects saltwater, as in the Gulf

12 of Mexico, also affects freshwater habitats. The

13 water from the Gulf interacts significantly with the

14 water of the Floridan aquifer in the location you have

15 chosen.

16 I'm sorry, I wrote this to the company and

17 not knowing who I was going to be speaking to.

18 JUDGE KARLIN: That's all right. I'm not

19 worried; we're listening.

20 MS. WOODS: And I forgot to correct that

21 word -- that has been chosen.

22 With the exception of those parts of

23 Florida that have already used up freshwater resources

24 in their area, and who have already turned to

25 desalinization, the Floridan aquifer is the source of
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1 fresh water for all Floridians who live in the western

2 half of the state.

3 Our freshwater quantity and quality in the

4 western half of the state has suffered serious

5 degradation as the state's population increases,

6 requiring greater demands on the Floridan aquifer and

7 greater opportunities for degradation of the aquifer

8 thanks to mining, which exposes the water to airborne

9 pollutants; large-scale farming with heavy use of

10 fungicides, insecticides, and fertilizer; and every-

11 increasing development of land that used to serve to

12 filter and cleanse the rainfall as the water passes

13 back into the aquifer.

14 Within this USGS report are analyses that

15 demonstrate how critical it is to maintain not only

16 happy humans and fresh water, but also healthy waters

17 in caves and springs to support every life form in

18 Florida, from macrofauna right on up to humans.

19 The reason that macrofauna are so

20 important is that they are the base of the chain of

21 life. They are the bellwethers of the coastal

22 habitats; they are the canaries in the coal mine.

23 I urge you to think very carefully about

24 not only the company's challenges in the building of

25 two more nuclear facilities in Florida's fragile
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1 coastal areas, but also of the absolute necessity of

2 fiercely protecting the bio-diversity that it critical

3 to life for us now and for the generations to come.

4 Shrinking bio-diversity and threatened

5 macrofauna always means inevitably a less promising

6 future for humans as well. Thank you.

7 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you. Thank you, Ms.

8 Woods.

9 I'm going to go through the people who we

10 called earlier and weren't in attendance and maybe if

11 they want to come forward.

12 Let's start with Mr. Norman Hopkins. Is

13 Mr. Hopkins here?

14 (No response.)

15 JUDGE KARLIN: John Reehill -- Rayhill,

16 Mr. Rayhill?

17 (No response.)

18 JUDGE KARLIN: Josh Whooten, Mr. Whooten?

19 Ah, Mr. Whooten?

20 MR. WHOOTEN: Yes, sir.

21 JUDGE KARLIN: Very good, sir. All right.

22 MR. WHOOTEN: Thank you for coming to

23 Citrus County and holding this. I'm Josh Whooten,

24 President and Chief Executive Officer of the Citrus

25 County Chamber of Commerce, and I would like to convey
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1 to you that Progress Energy has, on a consistent

2 basis, been good stewards of our environment here in

3 Citrus County.

4 And the Board of County -- the Board of

5 Directors of the Citrus County Chamber of Commerce

6 unanimously supports this application and our Chairman

7 of the Board, Mr. Bill Winkel, is here with me in the

8 back of the room.

9 And on a personal note, as a native

10 Floridian and a resident of Citrus County since 1984,

11 and the father of four daughters ages 9 through 19, I

12 have no problem with Progress Energy expanding with

13 these plants. And, we would appreciate your

14 consideration that you move this forward. Thank you.

15 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay, thank you, Mr.

16 Whooten.

17 Christine Mendoca -- donca -- doza.

18 (No response.)

19 JUDGE KARLIN: No? Okay. Winnie Foster -

20 - Ms. Winnie Foster?

21 (No response.)

22 JUDGE KARLIN: Cathy Harrelson? Did we

23 get Cathy Harrelson?

24 (No response.)

25 JUDGE KARLIN: No? All right. We'll go

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS

1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com



774

1 to the next list here. Dr. Anthony Apostoliedes, I

2 believe it is. Dr. Apostoliedes.

3 DR. APOSTOLIEDES: Thank you.

4 Radioactivity cannot be made harmless to humans. Each

5 reactor of 1 gigawatt power generates as much

6 radioactivity as 1,000 exploded nuclear weapons. That

7 is Hiroshima bombs. Nuclear health risks are posed by

8 the spread of radioactive substances into the

9 environment.

10 Human-made radioactivity at the moment of

11 its generation is contained in the spent nuclear fuel

12 and comprises dozens of different radionuclides

13 representing all possible decay modes and all elements

14 of the periodic table.

15 Even after a cooling period of 100 years

16 the specific radioactivity of spent fuel is still at

17 such a high level that about 1 milligram of it, if

18 ingested or inhaled, would mean a lethal dose to a

19 human. This does not happen with any other form of

20 energy.

21 Exposure to nuclear radiation can cause

22 carcinogenic, mutagenic and teratogenic effects. This

23 includes cancers and leukemias, which are cancers of

24 the blood.

25 A major study commissioned by the German
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1 government revealed in 2008 that the leukemia

2 incidents among young children living near nuclear

3 reactors was increased by 120 percent. That is a 2.2-

4 fold increase. And solid cancers were increased --

5 excuse me -- increased by 60 percent. That is a 1.6-

6 fold increase. This result has been affirmed by other

7 studies.

8 According to another paper on this study,

9 the German study by Ian Fairley, doses from

10 environmental emissions from nuclear reactors to

11 embryos and fetuses in pregnant women near nuclear

12 power plants may well be larger than suspected.

13 There's also a French study on this issue

14 that actually just came out January 11th. In fact we

15 know France has a lot of nuclear reactors for a

16 country. And that French study found that the

17 incidents of leukemia is twice as high in children

18 living close to French nuclear power plants as

19 compared to those living elsewhere in the country.

20 Okay. Now, the official exposure

21 standards are based on models and concern only direct

22 exposure to radiation from external radiation sources

23 that is against the skin. The models do not include

24 the biological effects of the radionuclides within the

25 living cells after inhalation -- that is breathing --
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1 and/or ingestion -- that is eating -- of the

2 radioactive materials via air, water, or food.

3 Tritium and Carbon 14 are two

4 radionuclides that are released on a daily routine

5 basis by nuclear power plants, spent fuel storage

6 facilities, and reprocessing plants.

7 Health risks of nuclear power are

8 exacerbated by the fact that a number of hazardous

9 radionuclides are difficult to detect, such as

10 Tritium, Carbon 14, and Iodine 121, and these

11 radionuclides are routinely released into the

12 environment.

13 MR. FLYNTZ: One minute, please.

14 DR. APOSTOLIEDES: Radioactive waste.

15 Radioactive waste, spent fuel rods from nuclear power

16 plants are being stored currently in water pools at

17 the site of the plant. This was to be a temporary

18 storage before permanent storage by the Government,

19 actually. The permanent storing has not happened

20 because no state wants radioactive waste stored in

21 their state. That indicates how people feel about the

22 storing of nuclear waste in their backyard.

23 Increasing background radiation, another

24 point. Background radiation is a result of natural

25 radiation and manmade radiation. In the 1930's there
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1 was only natural background radiation; since 1930's,

2 because of atomic bomb explosions, et cetera, the

3 background radiation has been increasing.

4 Background radiation would've been

5 increased due to radiation releases from an increasing

6 number of nuclear power plants. And I wonder if NRC

7 has numbers on background radiation in 1930 and for

8 years up to now.

9 MR. FLYNTZ: Time.

10 DR. APOSTOLIEDES: Thanks.

11 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you, Dr.

12 Apostoliedes.

13 I might also remind everyone, written

14 statements can also be submitted to the Board and we

15 will be taking those statements up until the eve of

16 the hearing, the actual trial in October of this year,

17 or so as I assume.

18 And the next speaker is Patia

19 Apostoliedes.

20 MS. APOSTOLIEDES: Hello. Thank you for

21 having me speak. My name is Patia Apostoliedes. I

22 worked as a biologist in the radiation biology field

23 for several years.

24 Ionizing radiation causes mutations in the

25 DNA of humans and all living organizations and these
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1 mutations can be handed down from generation to

2 generation.

3 In my field of work we conducted

4 experiments on mice and tissue cultures using

5 different types of radiation like cesium, neutrons,

6 and radioisotopes. I saw firsthand the deleterious

7 effect that ionizing radiation has on living

8 organisms. This has been extensively written about

9 since the 1950's from the horrendous effects of the

10 atomic bomb on the Hiroshima victims and more recently

11 from the Chernobyl nuclear accident in the 1980's.

12 I learned how to protect myself from this

13 invisible enemy in the lab by wearing gloves, masks,

14 outer clothing, and dosimeters, but the common man has

15 no such protection if there is a nuclear power

16 accident and they are exposed to high levels of

17 radiation.

18 In the past, radiation exposure from the

19 environment was handled by our DNA repair mechanisms.

20 However, manmade radiation does accumulate in our

21 bodies and does more damage over time. A study done

22 by Joe Mangano, et al, looks at Strontium 90 in

23 babies' teeth. This radiation is coming from the milk

24 they drink.

25 Nuclear power plants use radiation to boil
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1 water. This is an expensive way to boil water. Also

2 nuclear power plants can have major accidents as seen

3 at Three Mile Island, Chernobyl, and now Fukushimi

4 Japan.

5 Japan is an earthquake-prone country; yet

6 they built nuclear reactors there. When the March

7 2011 earthquake and tsunami hit the Fukushimi nuclear

8 reactors much devastation and loss has occurred. Now

9 Germany and Switzerland are shutting down their

10 nuclear plants. To me this is a prudent measure.

11 As I speak now, plutonium from the

12 Fukushimi accident is circling the globe as written in

13 a Lithuanian study of December 2011. The Japanese are

14 reporting deaths from the Fukushimi event and much

15 suffering.

16 Florida is a hurricane-prone state, yet

17 they're considering building nuclear power plants. Do

18 you see the pattern here?

19 The fact that I have to stand here and

20 plead for the safety of my family and the rest of

21 humanity shows that we are not living in a benevolent

22 society; okay? The greed of the utility companies,

23 like Progress Energy, wanting to build a nuclear power

24 plant, given the Fukushimi event, shows a lack of

25 consideration and compassion for the human race. What
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1 is wrong with using solar energy instead? There are

2 no known health risks as in nuclear energy.

3 It is time to stop this insane love affair

4 with nuclear energy. Thank you.

5 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you.

6 The next speaker is Ann Muga.

7 MS. MUGA: Muga.

8 JUDGE KARLIN: Muga. Ms. Muga.

9 MS. MUGA: Thank you for holding this

10 hearing. I want to speak on Section 4(a) (2), numeral

11 2, which has to do with the amount of water being

12 withdrawn from the Floridan aquifer by Progress

13 Energy.

14 It was reported in the Ocala Star Banner,

15 by a reporter by the name of Grady Hires, that

16 Progress Energy has already received permission to

17 withdraw up to 5 million gallons of water daily

18 directly from the Floridan aquifer. Is this your

19 understanding or do you know whether that is --

20 JUDGE KARLIN: We're not going to be

21 answering questions. I don't have an immediate answer

22 to that.

23 MS. MUGA: Okay. So there is no one in

24 the room who would know the answer to that question.

25 JUDGE KARLIN: Well, that's not the

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS

1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com



781

1 purpose here; we're just here to listen, ma'am.

2 MS. MUGA: Okay, all right. Anyway, that

3 was a report in the paper. And secondarily, that they

4 were permitted to withdraw up to 130 million gallons

5 a day from the Florida Barge Canal.

6 We're in a water shortage in Florida. I'm

7 fourth generation native. When I grew up in this

8 state, water was everywhere. There were swamps;

9 ditches were full of water by the side of the road;

10 and you don't see that anymore because we're using

11 more water than we're getting to replenish the

12 aquifer.

13 So to withdraw this much fresh water from

14 the Floridan aquifer would certainly be a great

15 disadvantage to the citizens of this state.

16 We have karst topography and, as you know

17 -- I lived in Brandon about a year ago when the

18 strawberry growers down there withdrew so much water

19 from the aquifer that sinkholes opened up all over the

20 place and people's homes started vanishing into the

21 ground. The more water you withdraw, the more

22 sinkholes appear. So if you -- the karst topography

23 underlies the place where this plant is to be built,

24 that seems to me incredibly a bad way to go.

25 Another question I had in my mind was as

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS

1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.

(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com



782

1 far as I know in Florida agriculture can withdraw --

2 anyone can put in a four-inch well, or whatever, and

3 withdraw water from the ground without having to pay

4 anything other than the electricity to withdraw it.

5 Most people who live in cities pay high water bills.

6 And I'm wondering whether Progress Energy

7 pays anything at all for the water that they would

8 withdraw from the aquifer.

9 Secondarily I would say -- and I have to

10 say this in behalf of my brother who is too ill to be

11 here. I'm opposed to nuclear power because there

12 really is no safe way to store this fuel, as you well

13 know. For all the years it would have to be guarded

14 and safeguarded, how would we place such a burden on

15 future generations when we could have solar, or wind,

16 or many other different kinds of power? So I say no

17 to nuclear power.

18 JUDGE KARLIN: All right, thank you.

19 Mr. David Preklik?

20 MR. PREKLIK: Preklik. Good afternoon,

21 gentlemen. I'm Dave Preklik, Executive Director for

22 the Nature Coast Business Development Council. We

23 have a letter I would like to read to you real quick.

24 The Nature Coast Business Development

25 Council pledges its support for Progress Energy's
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1 proposed nuclear reactors --

2 THE REPORTER: Slow down a little bit.

3 MR. PREKLIK: -- to be constructed north

4 of Inglis in Levy County. With advances in nuclear

5 energy infrastructure design and safety, we are

6 confident the 1,000 megawatt passive pressurized water

7 reactor is more than suited for this location and

8 surroundings.

9 We believe the environmental impact will

10 be minimal --

11 MR. KARLIN: Can you slow down a little

12 bit? The Court Reporter wants to capture all of this

13 and --

14 MR. PREKLIK: -- will be minimal with

15 carbon-free nuclear power and with the ability to

16 accommodate more consumers will allow for reduced

17 energy rates.

18 Since opening its Crystal River plant in

19 1977, Progress Energy has remained committed to the

20 community through charitable donations, event

21 sponsorships, and other assistance. They have worked

22 exhaustively to maintain faultless safety and

23 operations records that exemplify their care for the

24 community.

25 Furthermore, the proposed Levy plants are
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1 expected to generate 3400 construction jobs and 800

2 permanent jobs once the reactors go online. Coupled

3 with taxes and revenue generated from home sales,

4 groceries, fuel and other expenses from these workers,

5 they will contribute to the continued economic growth

6 and prosperity of this region.

7 Their commitment to reducing demand on

8 fossil fuels, focusing more on renewable energy,

9 putting hard working men and women to work, and

10 keeping ahead of the growing demand for energy, this

11 will fuel the strength of the surrounding communities

12 to become more sustainable and provide more

13 opportunities for residents and visitors alike.

14 Now we go off the script a little bit. I

15 grew up in upstate New York, about 50 miles from

16 Oswego, New York, which had Nine Mile Point, also a

17 nuclear power plant, was, for whatever reason, placed

18 on an inactive fault.

19 I had three earthquakes when I was up

20 there; I'm still alive. My dad, however, died of

21 cancer from melanoma in a place that averages 70 days

22 of sunshine a year. I came down here where I'm

23 exposed to any number of sources of radiation that

24 don't necessarily get the attention.

25 I think 90 percent of us have cell phones
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1 that we carry around; laptop computers we use when we

2 get to our workplaces; we drive there in our cars that

3 are, of course, emitting carbon monoxide and other

4 fumes.

5 You know, there's no guarantees in life

6 but, unfortunately, when it comes to sources of energy

7 like nuclear energy, you know, the Three Mile Points

8 and so forth get the attention when major disasters

9 hit. But I would be much more concerned with sources

10 of environmental radiation such as those cell phones

11 that we can't seem to live without, the laptops, and

12 other things. And that's my thoughts on that. So

13 thank you very much.

14 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you. Thank you, Mr.

15 Preklik.

16 I might also add that we ran out of the

17 Federal Register notices of this -- of this day, the

18 Limited Appearance Statement session. We had about

19 50. And I think we just had some more copies made so

20 if any -- apparently a couple more people wanted them,

21 so there's some more back there if you asked and you

22 couldn't get one.

23 The next person signed up is Renate

24 Cannon. Ms. Cannon?

25 MS. CANNON: Good afternoon Honorable
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1 Judges. I would like to begin by saying that I'm a

2 naturalized citizen of the United States of America

3 who escaped communist Germany in the middle of the

4 night. And so I do appreciate you taking time and

5 offering us the opportunity to speak.

6 I also would like to tell the gentlemen

7 that I support the intervenors in this case for the

8 following reasons. I worked for the Texas Water

9 Development Board because the state does not have

10 enough water. Then I would hate to see this state

11 ending up the same way, which it is already doing.

12 But to stick to contentions 4A, namely

13 number 2, a withdrawal of 1.5 million gallons a day by

14 the applicant of the Floridan aquifer, with atomic

15 mine already having been permitted by the Levy County

16 Board of County Commissioners, the two gentlemen that

17 were speaking earlier, makes an additional impact that

18 I cannot support.

19 And number 3 concerns the impacts on

20 outstanding Florida waters such as the Withlacoochee

21 and Waccasassa Rivers. Those designations have been

22 given by the state of Florida with the official agency

23 name of Florida Department of Environmental

24 Protection.

25 Let it be said for the record that I often
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1 have the feeling that it should be named Florida

2 Department of Environmental Pollution, gentlemen, I'm

3 sorry to have to say.

4 To move on to number 4, impacts on water

5 quality. Once saltwater intrusion occurs it is nearly

6 impossible to rectify the situation. And the impacts

7 on water quality, the connected service are not to be

8 minimized.

9 Now as previous speaker mentioned,

10 sinkholes, and I concur with that. The more the

11 aquifer gets drawn down the greater the probability if

12 not likelihood of sinkholes emerging.

13 I happen to live in Levy County. I'm a

14 resident and citizen of Levy County, 15 minutes drive

15 from Manatee Springs. I live in the spring protection

16 zone of that county. The city of Chiefland had great

17 problems with sinkholes to the extent that the high

18 school nearly sank through, and I would not like to

19 see that happen except to the proposed power plant,

20 maybe, that it would fall in the sinkhole.

21 Now, gentlemen, in closing I can live

22 without electricity if I had to. This state is

23 hurricane-prone. I am always having my battle gear

24 ready for any emergency, of which no electricity is

25 the first one to think about, and now -- but water is
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1 even more.

2 If you come to my property you will find

3 a working pitcher pump, which I had to travel a way

4 north to Monticello to get a gasket for that pump.

5 But it is in working condition and I do my darndest to

6 keep it in that shape.

7 Thank you for giving me your attention.

8 Thank you, sir.

9 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you, Ms. Cannon, and

10 thank you for focusing on the contention. That's

11 helpful to us.

12 The next one is Mr. Art Maruna. I hope I

13 got that right, Mr. Maruna.

14 MR. MARUNA: Yes, you did. Like maroon,

15 Maruna.

16 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay.

17 MR. MARUNA: I live in Levy County and

18 Levy County has a big population of 40,840 people.

19 And I live just south of Chiefland which has a good

20 population of 2,700 people. So obviously the majority

21 of the residents survive on wells, and it's my

22 understanding that most of the area is like an

23 underground spider web with the aquifer running

24 throughout. Anything that happens to our water in one

25 area can destroy the water throughout the whole area.
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1 We might be able to survive on a minimum

2 amount of electricity, but we certainly cannot survive

3 without water. If anything contaminates our water to

4 where we cease to exist, there obviously would be no

5 need for electricity.

6 I present myself as a foreigner; I'm from

7 California. I lived in the Bay Area and in the early

8 '80s we had a brownout for lack of water, which meant

9 that electricity was down; you couldn't water your

10 lawns or wash your car because we're pumping all the

11 water down south to Los Angeles, like they're doing

12 here in Florida, where they could water their lawn,

13 and wash their cars we would get tickets for doing

14 anything like that and go to court; they were just

15 perfectly happy laughing at us. But eventually we got

16 our water back.

17 If you contaminate our water here there

18 will be no coming back. We need the water; we need

19 the protection. We hope that you will take serious

20 consideration of looking after the welfare of our

21 water system throughout the area. Thank you.I

22 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you, sir.

23 The next is Janna Silva. Ms. Silva? Ms.

24 Silva.

25 MS. SILVA: It's Tanna Silva.

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS

1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com



790

1 JUDGE KARLIN: Tanna; I'm sorry. Tanna

2 Silva. Welcome.

3 MS. SILVA: Tanna. I scribbled it.

4 First of all, thank you so much. I really

5 appreciate the opportunity that you are giving us all

6 to at least have a say in this process.

7 Big money fights hard and we're little and

8 we don't have money. And, yet, we're the ones who

9 will be left with the consequences if anything goes

10 wrong and not as planned, while the stockholders the -

11 - I call them speculators -- everyone along the way,

12 the environmental engineering firms, everyone will

13 have made their paychecks and gone home and been happy

14 at our expense if anything goes wrong with this.

15 So I really appreciate that you are taking

16 the time to listen to our concerns about the water in

17 this particular hearing and in a bigger sense. And I

18 actually didn't plan on speaking today so I didn't

19 really prepare anything. I've been making notes on

20 what other people have said.

21 One thing I did want to say, though, is

22 that I live in Gainesville. I have been a journalist

23 and have taught journalism at the University of

24 Florida. And so when I listen on the radio to a

25 Progress Energy PR person talking about the mitigation

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS

1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com



791

1 of wetlands and all of that, the kindest word that

2 came to mind was delusional. It's -- you know, to

3 replace what already is here in terms of water on the

4 site and off the site with what will be extracted is

5 just not going to happen.

6 I drove here through, you know, two-lane

7 roads, through the woods and the fields. And I wish

8 we all could go take a trip to Rainbow Springs,

9 Rainbow River, and see this just magical gift of water

10 coming out of the ground.

11 Florida is water. My mother's family goes

12 back 200 years, not too far from here, in Florida.

13 And little by little, you know, these rural counties

14 that of course the forces that be, including our own

15 legislature, have ignored the little people and their

16 concerns about, you know, the natural environment that

17 we live with.

18 And so we see -- when my mom and I would

19 go to the beach, she also, like Mr. Bidgood, was a

20 World War II veteran. She served in New Guinea as a

21 flight nurse pioneer, but she grew up on a farm in

22 Florida, in St. Augustine.

23 So in her last years here, when we both

24 lived back in Florida, we would go to the beach and

25 just feel like we had to put blinders on to the --
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1 just the ignorance of, you know, something that looks

2 good on paper, a planned-unit development, extraction

3 of water and so forth. When you see the reality of

4 it, it's quite something else.

5 And a friend of mine who we were

6 colleagues at the Gainesville Sun years ago, a really

7 fine journalist, has written this book -- and I'm

8 going to make sure that the ASLB gets a copy of it

9 among the submissions, that I hope other people will

10 be writing, too. From Cynthia Barnett and she also is

11 a -- she's a Florida native and her family goes back

12 a long way.

13 This book that she's just written and it's

14 getting quite a lot of acclaim is, Blue Revolution:

15 Unmaking America's Water Crisis. And I'm sure, Dr.

16 Charbeneau, you will be hearing more about this, too,

17 in your line of work.

18 If I may just read a little tiny bit of

19 her chapter called "Powerful Thirst," pointing out the

20 extraction of water for use for cooling power, for

21 basically a 300-year-old technology, which is

22 electricity produced by steam -- not the electricity,

23 but steam technology is 300 years old.

24 MR. FLYNTZ: One minute, please.

25 MS. SILVA: One minute, oh, yikes.

NEAL R.-GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS

1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com



793

1 Let's see if I can find the pertinent

2 place.

3 "Nuclear facilities drink a much taller

4 serving of water than any other type of power plant,

5 demanding about 43 gallons of water for every kilowatt

6 hour they generate. Here's what this means :o an

7 American families: The average household burns 30

8 kilowatt hours of electricity a day. That's 750

9 gallons of water a day per family just to run the AC

10 and keep the lights on."

11 And she goes on, that no one paid much

12 attention to the thirst of power plants until the

13 early 21st Century when their demand for water began

14 to clash with that of growing urban populations.

15 Since then water scarcity worries have halted or held

16 up new thermal plants across the country.

17 And I hope it holds up this one, and I

18 really appreciate the opportunity that you all are

19 giving us to at least slow this process down so that

20 we can take a good look at, you know, the value of

21 this most vital resource that some of the other

22 speakers have said, too. Thank you.

23 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you. Thank you, Ms.

24 Silva.

25 Mr. David McSherry. Mr. McSherry. I hope
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1 I got that right.

2 MR. McSHERRY: My name is David McSherry.

3 We own and operate a farm in southwest Alachua County,

4 about 45 miles from here as the crow flies; maybe

5 less.

6 As a result of our livelihood and the way

7 we earn our living --

8 JUDGE KARLIN: Speak up a little bit so

9 everyone can hear you.

10 MR. McSHERRY: Okay. We have always paid

11 careful attention to groundwater issue with our own

12 wells and we've taken great care over the years to

13 inform ourselves as to what the scientific community

14 and engineering community say about these problems and

15 resources in Florida.

16 And currently it's become obvious, at the

17 popular level in this state, to understand that every

18 potable water aquifer in the state of Florida is going

19 down faster than they can be recharged by the natural

20 systems that provided that water in the first place.

21 So when we talk about here on the list of

22 concerns with the intervenors, every one of these

23 issues is extremely important and extremely

24 interwoven. You cannot have water in the Floridan

25 aquifer for people to drink unless you have the proper
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1 surficial water system and you can't have that unless

2 you have the proper water retention through forests

3 and wetlands, you know, that feed the lakes, and

4 springs, and rivers that feed the aquifer in the end.

5 The location of this plant, where they

6 intend to locate it, will do irredeemable damage to

7 the Floridan aquifer as well as the superficial waters

8 on the surface. That is incontestable.

9 The excavation process onsite, all the

10 matters that will happen on that site are extremely

11 damaging to recharge of the Floridan aquifer and it

12 will create a problem that cannot be fixed, either

13 from saltwater intrusion from the removal of fresh

14 water or from the inability of fresh water to be

15 recharged from rainfall, one way or the other through

16 the mechanisms that that occurs.

17 I believe that, in fact, that this plant -

18 - and I believe the scientists at your agency should

19 take special consideration of this -- at some point

20 within a decade, if it is ever operating, will be

21 struggling to find enough water for itself. This is

22 incredibly foolish.

23 This plant is going to be built inside the

24 hurricane surge line, when you look at the FEMA maps.

25 There's -- it's a foolish proposition. And I'll point
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1 out as a matter of context, perhaps, that for the last

2 four years electric sales in Florida have been flat or

3 slightly shrinking. There's no need for this plant

4 right now. There's no rush; there's no panic for more

5 electricity.

6 Some of our plants are aging and perhaps

7 should be changed out for better fuels or better

8 technologies, but we're not in a desperate need for

9 more electricity. We can think these things through,

10 and we shouldn't be rushing to build nuclear power

11 plants and destroying our water supply, which we will

12 never get back.

13 Once it happens it's gone. This is a

14 decision that can only be made once, and if it's

15 screwed up, we're screwed. Thank you.

16 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you, sir. Thank you.

17 Mr. Winn Webb. Mr. Webb?

18 MR. WEBB: Thank you, gentlemen. I'm the

19 chairman of the Citrus County Board of County

20 Commissioners and on behalf of the Board I would like

21 to welcome all of you to Citrus County.

22 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you.

23 MR. WEBB: It is the Nature Coast --

24 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you.

25 MR. WEBB: -- and we are proud of it. Let
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1 me start by saying -- and for the sake of the

2 transcriptionist, I'm from the south so talking slow

3 is probably not going to be an issue for me.

4 I am a lifelong resident from here in

5 Citrus County. I'm past the age of 60 so I predate

6 the nuclear plant. I remember when it was built.

7 There has always been issues in reference

8 to the nuclear plant but my wife and I, our five

9 children, our nine grandchildren, some of who still

10 reside here in the county, have lived in the shadow of

11 this nuclear plant.

12 No one to date glows in the dark; no one

13 has acquired any leukemia or cancer at this point.

14 Maybe that's because of good genes or maybe it's

15 because we're worrying about something, that we have

16 safety nets in place. And I think it's being followed

17 and I think that has a lot to do with it.

18 I think protecting our environment is

19 important to us. And I just want to touch on a couple

20 of issues that were mentioned today, which aren't on

21 your agenda but were mentioned, and I just feel the

22 necessity to touch on it.

23 It was mentioned about the Springs'

24 visibility recently, one of the gentlemen spoke on it.

25 And I will concur it has gotten murky. There was a
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1 time you could stand on the boat and you could see the

2 bottom in Kings Springs. Now you can't even see a

3 statute of a manatee that's down there; you have to

4 hunt for it in the algae.

5 But a part of that is because we, as a

6 county, over the years have worked very hard and very

7 diligently, and in some ways I believe there's more

8 than one factor. The manatee. Back in the '70s we

9 had less probably than 80 would come in in the winter.

10 Now we have somewhere close to 600. And they're

11 called sea cows, and that's just like a cow.

12 I don't know if you know much about the

13 cattle business, but in the cattle business if you

14 have unimproved pasture, it's one cow per acre; if you

15 have improved pasture, two cows per acre.

16 We are at a point to where we don't know

17 if the Bay can support 600 sea cows.at this point, and

18 we think that may have something to do with it as well

19 as the population growth over the years and the

20 drawing of water from the aquifer. These are issues

21 that we currently work on. I don't think it had

22 anything to do with the nuclear power plant.

23 The hurricane liability. I've lived here,

24 as I say, we had -- back in the '60s we had Hurricane

25 Donna, and all of the hurricanes that have come
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1 through here over the years. We've had a few eyes go

2 across Citrus County, but we've never had a cat. 2

3 hit Citrus County; they were negligible when they hit

4 Citrus County. We are protected here because of the

5 shape of the state has a lot to do with it. So, we

6 are blessed in spite of ourselves.

7 It was mentioned about wind and solar

8 power. If wind and solar power were so great they

9 would be a booming business. But President Obama

10 recently gave millions of tax dollars to two companies

11 that do just that in California, last year, and

12 they've already gone belly-up. They've not given us

13 a refund of our tax dollars yet. If it was such a

14 great deal they would be making money hand over fist.

15 It is a viable alternative, maybe in the future, but

16 we don't have the technology yet to make it

17 financially feasible.

18 Florida Power originally and now Progress

19 Energy have both been great public/private neighbors

20 or partners for county government here in Citrus

21 County. They've helped the citizens of Citrus County

22 in numerous ways --

23 MR. FLYNTZ: One minute, please.

24 MR. WEBB: Thank you.

25 Their security works well with the county,
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1 with the Sheriff's Office. Our Sheriff's Office

2 trains out there periodically; the dive team has

3 worked out there periodically.

4 There have been, over the years, little or

5 no impact to the adjacent wetlands, flood plains, and

6 other nearby waters, and we believe that's because

7 they've done a good job. We think they will continue.

8 Thank you.

9 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you, sir. Thank you,

10 Mr. Webb.

11 Drew White. Mr. White? Drew White, is he

12 here?

13 (No response.)

14 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. I'll make a circle

15 on that.

16 Andy Houston. Mr. Houston?

17 MR. HOUSTON: Good afternoon and welcome

18 to Crystal River.

19 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you.

20 MR. HOUSTON: My name is Andy Houston; I'm

21 the City Manager for the city of Crystal River. I

22 would like to speak specifically to the impact on

23 outstanding Florida waters and the impact on water

24 quality due to alterations in nutrient concentrations.

25 Much has been said about concerns for the
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1 plant and I'm not qualified to speak to some of the

2 concerns that have been raised, but I think it's

3 relevant and fair to look at what Progress Energy's

4 track record has been.

5 The city of Crystal River, along with the

6 Southwest Florida Water Management District and

7 Progress Energy, are in the process of working

8 collaboratively on a system that will transmit treated

9 waste water from our wastewater system to the Progress

10 Energy's energy generation complex for their use in

11 their gas desulfurization process.

12 The end result of that is going to be

13 somewhere between 1 million and ultimately 1-1/2

14 million gallon reduced groundwater withdrawal from the

15 Progress Energy site. It will also allow the city of

16 Crystal River to ultimately cease use of its spray

17 field.

18 The staff of the Southwest Florida Water

19 Management District has estimated that that is going

20 to ultimately reduce the nutrient load in Kings Bay by

21 16 percent. And I would note for the record Kings Bay

22 is a designated outstanding Florida waterway.

23 So I think Progress Energy has shown and

24 will continue to show a very serious interest in the

25 environmental impact of their operations and I would
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1 certainly encourage your approval of their permit.

2 Thank you.

3 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you. Thank you, Mr.

4 Houston.

5 Joe Meek. Mr. Joe Meek?

6 MR. MEEK: Good afternoon. My name is Joe

7 Meek and I'm a Citrus County Commissioner and also the

8 President of the Citrus County Economic Development

9 Council. And as was said earlier by Chairman

10 Commissioner Winn Webb and City Manager Andy Houston,

11 welcome to Crystal River and welcome to Citrus County.

12 And thank you for giving us an opportunity to speak

13 before you.

14 A lot of objections are tied to

15 philosophical objections of nuclear power here this

16 afternoon, and not to any specifics on this particular

17 application, or more specifically, this challenge that

18 is before you right now.

19 The contention that the Draft

20 Environmental Impact Statement fails to comply with

21 parts of the national -- excuse me -- National

22 Environmental Policy Act is just that, contentions; a

23 set of allegations.

24 The fact is in our community, and as

25 you've heard from Mr. Houston and Commissioner Webb,
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1 Progress Energy has been very engaged and very

2 responsive, and we are engaged with them right now, as

3 you've heard from Mr. Houston, on several

4 environmental projects to improve the quality of life

5 and the environment in Citrus County. And they have

6 been good stewards and partners with us in the past in

7 our community.

8 Frankly, some of the statements that have

9 been made here with regards to them have been

10 factually inaccurate. I would ask that you find that

11 this challenge is without merit; that the issues have

12 been addressed. And I would urge you to move forward,

13 put people to work and give this country and this

14 region an opportunity to be successful and permit this

15 licensing to move forward.

16 Thank you very much.

17 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you. Thank you, Mr.

18 Meek.

19 Donald Moss. Mr. Moss? Mr. Moss.

20 MR. MOSS: Right here.

21 JUDGE KARLIN: Are you here, sir?

22 MR. MOSS: I'm here but I want to wait a

23 while.

24 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. Well, I'll put a

25 circle around your name and we'll try to get back to
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you.

MR. MOSS: I've from Levy County, not

Citrus County.

JUDGE KARLIN: All right, that's fine. Do

you want to speak now, sir?

MR. MOSS: Not yet.

JUDGE KARLIN: Well, all righty. We've

got about a half hour here; I want to get you in.

We'll try. We'll go on to the next person, sir.

Mr. Clark Stillwell. I believe it's

Stillwell.

MR. STILLWELL: Good afternoon. For the

record my name is Clark Stillwell. My professional

address is 320 South Highway 41 in Inverness, Florida.

I am a lawyer. I represent the W.W. Carruth estate.

The Carruth estate is the owner of the

largest vacant commercial property in Inglis, Florida.

Additionally, they're the owner of 55 acres and 2

miles of waterfront property along the Withlacoochee

River, an outs~tanding Florida waterway. Clearly they

are an adversely or potentially adversely impacted

land owner if some of the things that have been said

here today were held to be true.

Just to give you a little background. In

my 30-some years of legal practice I specialized in
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1 land use and environmental matters. I would say to

2 you that my client challenged me to review the

3 Environmental Impact Statement. I reviewed it

4 professionally. I have found it to be competent, well

5 drafted, professionally done. I have reviewed the

6 comments to it and I would say to you they are

7 conclusionary, speculative, and largely conjecture.

8 The Carruth estate at one time was the

9 owner-operator of this facility. Mr. Will Carruth was

10 an investor in Citrus County since the late 1960's.

11 He owned several pieces of property and diversified

12 them and sold them off over the years to include this

13 hotel.

14 Will Carruth was a smart man, a very

15 successful man. He had a history of philosophic

16 gifting both here in Florida and the Dallas, Texas

17 area.

18 Adjacent to this proposed nuclear plant is

19 the Will Carruth Florida Sheriff's Boys and Girls

20 Ranch. Mr. Carruth gave that property and the money

21 to create it.

22 Having known the man since 1975 I would

23 tell you that if he knew that there was going to be a

24 nuclear facility there, built by Progress Energy, that

25 he still would've made that gift because he believed
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1 in Progress Energy and what they did here in Citrus

2 County.

3 Now, disclaimer. In 35 years of legal

4 practice I've had the opportunity to represent

5 Progress Energy on occasion. If you read my

6 Martindale-Hubbel AV you'll see them as a

7 representative client. So, I say that up front.

8 But I can tell you, professionally

9 speaking, I believe the Environmental Impact Statement

10 is accurate. On the issue of manatees.. If you go to

11 the best available data, the counts, the studies that

12 have actually been done on the Barge Canal, it is not

13 a facility that we call outstanding Florida manatee

14 areas. The Citrus County Land Use Plan designates it

15 as an area for the proposed use of Progress Energy as

16 set forth. The manatee counts over the last 10 years

17 are negligible.

18 When the U.S. 19 bridge was completed

19 there was a certified manatee expert onsite for four

20 months. For four continuous months there were no

21 sitings of manatee. Some people say there is a

22 manatee impact from this project; I suggest not.

23 Yesterday I had the opportunity to meet

24 with senior officials at the U.S. Fish and Wildlife on

25 manatee impacts in Kings Bay. And one of the comments
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1 that came out -- to show you how the environmental

2 world works in big circles, U.S. Fish and Wildlife is

3 engaged in the process of meeting with energy

4 producers to obtain their license for warm water

5 discharge -- to obtain their licenses for warm water

6 discharges so that when those plants are decertified

7 they can continue to pump warm water into the waters

8 of the state of Florida to maintain a viable manatee

9 population.

10 So when people say warm water discharge

11 has impacts, go talk to U.S. Fish and Wildlife and

12 they will tell you all the positive reasons.

13 MR. FLYNTZ: One minutes, please.

14 MR. STILLWELL: Thank you for your time.

15 I appreciate it.

16 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you, Mr. Stillwell.

17 Thank you.

18 Aaron Witherspoon.

19 MS. WITHERSPOON: It's Avon.

20 JUDGE KARLIN: I'm sorry, Avon? Avon.

21 Ms. Witherspoon.

22 MS. WITHERSPOON: Good afternoon. My name

23 is Avon Witherspoon and I'm a native Floridian. I

24 live in the neighboring county of Alachua and I would

25 like to go on record as saying that I'm opposed to the
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1 construction of this nuclear facility.

2 I'm here basically to add my voice of

3 opposition and the reasons that have been previously

4 cited, I'm not going to reiterate.

5 The primary reason that this facility is

6 being constructed is because it's been said that the

7 current facilities are aging and/or in need of repair,

8 and that nuclear energy is needed so that we can keep

9 our current source of electricity cheap.

10 And I'm about to borrow a saying that I've

11 heard on TV. "Let's get real here." The real facts

12 of the matter is it's been said that nuclear energy is

13 cheap, it's safe, and it's an unlimited source of

14 energy. That may be true, but as we can see from

15 recent events that things we never thought would

16 happen have happened. And a lot of the industrialized

17 nations are now rethinking nuclear as their source of

18 energy.

19 I would suggest that the money that's

20 going to be used for funding of this project, that

21 those funds be used for the further research in

22 alternative energies that are primary and secondary

23 sources such as solar and hydrogen.

24 In addition to that, the monies that are

25 being used for this project can be used to help get
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1 these other sources of energy to the market.

2 I've heard some of the business owners say

3 that these alternative energy sources have not worked

4 and that's just not true. The reason that they are

5 not in forefront is because of lack of funding and a

6 lack of infrastructure funding. The funds that are

7 used for this project can be used to help get these

8 sources to the market faster.

9 And another additional thing that we need

10 is the education of our consumers on these new energy

11 sources. I, myself, personally, I'm working to get

12 myself off of the energy grid, period. And at this

13 moment in time I suggest that if anybody thinks right

14 now that your energy costs are not going to go up,

15 they will. It doesn't matter whether you use the

16 current facilities or this new one that you're

17 proposing. I am on record as being against this. I

18 can see the funds be used for something more efficient

19 for our current citizens and the ones that are yet to

20 be born. Thank you.

21 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you, Ms. Witherspoon.

22 Mr. Smithil -- is it Smithtile -- Robert

23 K. Smith.

24 MR. SMITH: Smith.

25 JUDGE KARLIN: Sorry, sir. Come on up
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1 forward.

2 MR. SMITH: Robert Smith.

3 JUDGE KARLIN: I'm sorry I got it wrong,

4 Mr. Smith.

5 MR. SMITH: Maybe it's just bad writing.

6 JUDGE KARLIN: Well, I'm sorry. Maybe

7 it's my eyesight.

8 MR. SMITH: I'm Progress Energy's closest

9 neighbor. I live 6800 feet from reactor 2 that's

10 going to be built, so I've got a lot of concerns.

11 I've listened to a lot of people in here

12 from Citrus County, and Levy County, pros and cons,

13 and all that stuff, and it's interesting to listen to

14 the different people talk and what they have to say,

15 but not one of them lives as close as I live.

16 And Dixie Hollins was up here talking

17 about how nice Progress Energy is and they're good

18 people; I have no complaints about them; they've been

19 very nice to me and stuff like that, and he lived

20 close by. But that was 10 years ago. He doesn't live

21 there no more, so what his speech and stuff. He's got

22 a lot of land there.

23 I have a lot of concerns. I talked to

24 Doug Bruner. He's got 14 questions that I sent to him

25 at the last meeting that they have yet to answer for
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1 me; that they told me that they were going to answer

2 for me. He told me it wouldn't be until April until

3 I got my answers and they were supposed to give it to

4 me in writing and I haven't hear.

5 I've talked to Doug, talked to him when he

6 was on vacation, in fact, and we had a meeting, a

7 telemeeting not too long ago. I was in on that. And

8 they told me at that meeting they were going to answer

9 them right away; Doug said it ain't going to happen

10 'til April.

11 But I have a lot of concerns. These

12 people that are here' talking that's all for it and

13 stuff like that, if they had that in their backyard I

14 think they would have a different attitude. You know,

15 6800 feet is close.

16 People talking about water. My water is

17 well water and if they're going to take 5-or-6 million

18 gallons a day out of the ground, you can't tell me

19 it's not going to affect my well. My water already is

20 bad in that area now. You start taking that much

21 water out of the ground it's really going to be bad.

22 Another thing I'm concerned about with

23 them is they're talking about building the emergency

24 management areas 50 miles away. I asked them: Well,

25 why don't you -- Progress Energy's got 5200 acres; why
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1 don't you build it right there. They said, well, we'd

2 have to put special filtrations in the building and

3 stuff like that. And I go, well, what's wrong with

4 that? Well, it will costs too much. Why don't you

5 put special filtrations in my house that I built

6 myself there. I've got to live there; why can't they

7 have the emergency management there?

8 You know, there are just so many things

9 that are unanswered that you all haven't given me an

10 answer. And I've come to you all and I've been to

11 every meeting that there's been to and I'm not getting

12 -- I'm not getting my answers. And Progress Energy

13 can't answer my questions, so I have a lot of

14 concerns.

15 I just found out about this meeting,

16 believe it or not, today as I was getting off work,

17 that's why I'm a little bit late or I would've had

18 more notes with me and stuff.

19 It was in the paper I hear, in the

20 Chronicle, but I only -- the only paper I get because

21 I live -- you'll see, if you look it up, I live in the
(

22 woods, and my property adjoins theirs. So I'm way out

23 there and the only little newspaper I get is the

24 Newscaster and it had nothing about it.

25 Now, I knew that there was a meeting
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1 coming up but I didn't know exactly what the date was.

2 There are many concerns. I just -- you know, those

3 are things that I -- those 14 questions, you can talk

4 to Doug about it. I know you know Doug Bruner with

5 the Nuclear Regulatory Commission. And I'd like to

6 get my questions answered before we go on any further.

7 And any of these people back here that

8 would like to live 6800 feet from a nuclear reactor

9 and get up here and hurrah for them because it isn't

10 a pretty site. And I was there first. Progress

11 Energy came after I was already there. Thank you.

12 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you, Mr. Smith.

13 I might say I have no idea who Doug Bruner

14 is. I assume he's somebody who works for the NRC

15 staff --

16 MR. SMITH: That's who he is.

17 JUDGE KARLIN: -- and that's good. I

18 cannot speak to what Mr. Bruner has promised or said

19 because we don't talk with the staff. And if you've

20 got questions for him I hope he answers them and does

21 what he said he would do.

22 Anyway, Ms. Barbara Sieling?

23 MS. SIELING: Not bad.

24 JUDGE KARLIN: Is it Sieling.

25 MS. SIELING: You had a 50/50 shot.
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1 JUDGE KARLIN: All right. Well, how did

2 I do?

3 MS. SIELING: You did great.

4 JUDGE KARLIN: All right.

5 MS. SIELING: I'm here -- I wanted to

6 finish the -- I'm Barbara Sieling, and I wanted to

7 finish reading the statute that Ms. Berger didn't have

8 time to finish.

9 JUDGE KARLIN: All right, all right.

10 MS. SIELING: And then if I still have

11 time I'd like to add my own two cents; okay?

12 JUDGE KARLIN: Whatever. You've got five

13 minutes.

14 MS. SIELING: Okay. And my shirt says a

15 lot of what I think about Progress Energy; okay?

16 JUDGE KARLIN: All right.

17 MS. SIELING: The statute resolution was

18 signed by Chiles and Cabinet January 22nd, 1991.

19 Whereas, the Governor and the Cabinet of

20 the state of Florida have previously determined that

21 completion of the Cross Florida Barge Canal Project,

22 hereafter Barge Canal, could have cause -- could cause

23 incalculable damage to the Florida aquifer and thereby

24 threaten much of Florida's drinking water resources;

25 and
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1 Whereas the Governor and Cabinet of the

2 state of Florida have adopted prior resolutions

3 supporting final deauthorization of the Barge Canal

4 and retention by the state of Florida of former Barge

5 Canal lands and related water resources for the

6 purpose of preserving, to the maximum extent possible,

7 a greenbelt corridor of unspoiled wetlands, forests,

8 and waterway to provide a habitat for many endangered

9 species and for public recreation, and

10 Whereas, identical federal bills were

11 filed earlier this year in the Congress of the United

12 States by Senators Graham and Mack and by Bill James,

13 Tom Lewis, Bill Nelson, Bill Young, Porter Goss and

14 Andy Ireland providing for the final deauthorization

15 of the Barge Canal project and ownership by the state

16 of Florida of canal lands upon certain conditions

17 being agreed to by the state of Florida as set forth

18 in subsection (b) of the federal bills; and

19 Whereas, in order to comply with the

20 conditions set forth in subsection (b) of those

21 federal laws, the Florida legislature responded by

22 enacting the 1990 session, chapter blah, creating from

23 former Barge Canal lands to Cross Florida Greenbelt

24 State Recreation and Conservation Area and providing

25 a former Barge Canal route to the maximum extent
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1 possible and with certain state exceptions authorized

2 by federal bills having a minimum greenbelt corridor

3 width of 300 yards; and

4 Whereas, the federal Barge Canal final

5 deauthorization bill was recently enacted by the U.S.

6 Congress and signed into law by the President of the

7 United States on November 28, 1990; and

8 Whereas section -- you guys have copies --

9 does not become effective until the Governor and the

10 state of Florida adopt a resolution specifically

11 agreeing on behalf of the state of Florida as to the

12 terms.

13 Now, therefore, be it is resolved that

14 copies of this resolution be dispatched to the

15 President of the United States, the President of the

16 United States Senate, the Speaker of the House of

17 Representatives, each member of the Florida delegation

18 to the United States Congress, the President of the

19 Florida Senate, and the Speaker of the Florida House

20 of Representatives.

21 In testimony whereof, the Governor and

22 Cabinet of the state of Florida have hereunto

23 subscribed their names and official seal in the city

24 of Tallahassee on the 22nd day of January 1991.

25 It is signed by Governor Chiles, Secretary
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1 of State Smith, Attorney General Butterworth,

2 Comptroller Lewis, Treasurer Galagher, Commissioner of

3 Agriculture Crawford, and Betty Cantor, Commissioner

4 of Education.

5 And her statements after that were that

6 the note that the plans to transport the nuclear

7 building materials up the Barge Canal to a planned

8 barge slip. There has never been a barge that made it

9 up the canal. She mentioned that earlier.

10 MR. FLYNTZ: One minute, please.

11 MS. SIELING: My own opinion is, having

12 come from St. Petersburg, which uses SWFWMD water, and

13 also has the desalination plants that doesn't work

14 down on Tampa Bay, I think there is no way that we

15 should authorize a possible contamination of

16 radioactive water into our aquifers. The water is

17 down too far now.

18 I live in Alachua county on an area called

19 Watermelon Pond that is now a prairie. Our water is

20 so low now that the migratory birds are having a hard

21 time finding spots to come in and land.

22 You allow them to pollute it or allow them

23 to withdraw so much water; and then if there is a

24 disaster which can't be fixed -- somebody said earlier

25 nothing is guaranteed. Yes, the one guarantee we have
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1 is if there is a nuclear accident there will be no

2 people living in Florida any longer because there will

3 be no more water.

4 MR. FLYNTZ: Time.

5 MS. SIELING: Thank you.

6 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you. Thank you, Ms.

7 Sieling.

8 All right. December McSherry, I believe

9 that is.

10 MS. McSHERRY: Yes. Good afternoon.

11 JUDGE KARLIN: Welcome.

12 MS. McSHERRY: I am here to also oppose

13 nuclear power. I've been -- my family is a fourth

14 generation Florida family. We've enjoyed swimming,

15 fishing, boating in the north Florida springs, rivers,

16 and the Gulf of Mexico. I'm a farmer.

17 I've seen recently in the last 10 years

18 the Floridan aquifer drop one foot a year. This is a

19 telltale or what's going to happen.

20 I serve on my county's environmental

21 advisory committee and we're studying all sorts of new

22 water withdrawal permits. And it's unbelievable how

23 many requests for water are on the table right now.

24 The Floridan aquifer cannot sustain these

25 rivers, lakes, ponds, streams, and the great beautiful
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1 springs much longer. The deeper the aquifer sinks you

2 lose your cypress dome wetlands; the rivers go down

3 further; the bio-diversity decreases.

4 Recently we took a tour through Goethe

5 State Forest and noticed that the drought had caused

6 a great deal of -- water level table had gone down and

7 there was a catastrophic fire where 2,0.00 acres

8 literally just burnt to death the ground and all the

9 trees. I mean, it's going to take a long time for

10 that to come back. There has been catastrophic

11 droughts and, you know, massive wildfires that are

12 uncontrollable.

13 We don't need the power; less power is

14 needed. More efficiency in the homes should be the

15 trend. I don't want to see our outstanding Florida

16 waters degraded. They're not legally allowed to be

17 degraded. Please don't rush into this, and make sure

18 that the Environmental Impact Statement really reviews

19 what has happened to our area water resources. Thank

20 you.

21 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you Ms. McSherry.

22 Thank you.

23 Francine Robinson, Francine Robinson.

24 MS. ROBINSON: Good afternoon, gentlemen.

25 I won't list all the concerns regarding hydrologic and
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1 other water issues since they have been so very well

2 presented here before you in advance of my speaking.

3 But I would like to say that the following

4 four organizations support the concerns regarding the

5 water issues and other environmental comments that

6 they made, these previous speakers. And these are the

7 four organizations that I represent: Florida League

8 of Conservation Voters; Greenpeace -- Greenspace

9 Preservation Association of Alachua County; Preserve

10 our Wetlands of Alachua County; and the Citizens

11 Coalition for Clean Water.

12 I just want to add, on the excellent

13 comments made previously, add just another thought or

14 two. And that is that routinely -- I think this was

15 mentioned by one previous speaker -- routinely, which

16 can encompass every day, radioactive emissions are

17 permitted from nuclear reactors. And these emissions

18 impact air, water, and soil.

19 And the agricultural products that grow up

20 in these soils transmit radioactivity, radioactive

21 problems to those who ingest them and from the air,

22 those who breathe them.

23 I would like to also say in general that -

24 - and perhaps this is a suggested idea that can be

25 supported perhaps by further scientific data. But
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1 these routine radioactive emissions may well be part

2 of the picture of the studies done by the German

3 Cancer Registry and the North Wales Environmental

4 Ministry where, as some have said before, the closer

5 that people live to a nuclear plant the greater the

6 incidents of breast cancer, thyroid cancer, and

7 childhood leukemias.

8 The data are in and these are facts.

9 In closing I would like to say that all

10 human endeavors are subject to human error and

11 mechanical failure. Therefore, the concerns about

12 water impacts and the other environmental hazards need

13 to prevail. Thank you.

14 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you, Ms. Robinson.

15 We've gone through all the people on the

16 list who have responded, I guess with the exception of

17 Mr. Moss who asked to be reserved for last.

18 Is Mr. Moss here?

19 (No response.)

20 JUDGE KARLIN: Does anyone know whether

21 Mr. Moss is right outside? I don't want to -- we have

22 about five minutes left here.

23 He's not out there?

24 UNIDENTIFIED MALE: No.

25 JUDGE KARLIN: Okay. Well then -- then we
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1 have Ms. Berger. Let me devote what we've got left

2 here, about five or six minutes, Ms. Berger.

3 MS. BERGER: Oh, bless you.

4 JUDGE KARLIN: Thank you. No, thank you

5 for waiting the whole time; it's a long day.

6 MS. BERGER: Well, you guys are the ones

7 sitting up there getting punished.

8 JUDGE KARLIN: No, ma'am, we're listening,

9 trying to listen.

10 MS. BERGER: SWFWMD, that's the Southwest

11 Florida Water Management District, has said that area

12 of the aquifer is fed only by rainfall. Because of

13 the high land, it can't -- no water can come from the

14 Suwannee or from the sides.

15 So when -- if it's fed only by rainfall,

16 it's not raining, there is a definite end to how much

17 water that is going to be there.

18 The Midwest Aquifer covered eight states;

19 it's gone dry. They're having to truck their water

20 in, into several cities. That's what will happen to

21 us. There's 30 public water supplies and many private

22 wells that take out of that aquifer. 32 million

23 gallons of water a day is how much Tarmac mine wants

24 to wash their rock, and they've got people rooting for

25 them.
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1 But I would like you to realize that

2 Progress Energy is not the way Florida Power was.

3 Florida Power was a family company; Progress Energy is

4 for saving money. And they -- there was a valve that

5 blue up that killed Bill Bowers. They sent back all

6 the repair parts for that because they didn't want to

7 pay for them. It blew up and killed him and he's --

8 his wife, Maida, is still concerned about that.

9 But they're not all that great and even

10 Florida Power, when they built that nuclear plant,

11 they didn't watch what the manual said about the

12 temperature of the water; it had to be a certain

13 degree.

14 The whole nuclear containment building

15 crumbled. Before all this other stuff happened, all

16 they did was take out a piece of the containment

17 building to replace a generator. Everything else is

18 way over-dated -- outdated -- that they're not going

19 to replace. The valves, everything that's concerned

20 there. So they're not going to be a good steward

21 here.

22 Their minutes said they're not even going

23 to build nuclear up there; they're going to use gas

24 for the next 20 years. And it's copyrighted. I

25 didn't take a copy of it and they took it off the

NEAL R. GROSS
COURT REPORTERS AND TRANSCRIBERS

1323 RHODE ISLAND AVE., N.W.
(202) 234-4433 WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-3701 www.nealrgross.com



824

1 internet so I can't get it. But they're not somebody

2 you can rely on. They're not a family company

3 anymore. They're simply to line their own pockets.

4 They went from 60 cents per share to $3.15

5 a share since they got this legislature to add money

6 to our bills. I'm 93 years old and I'm going to live

7 another 10 years and fight this.

8 JUDGE KARLIN: All right, thank you.

9 Thank you, Ms. Berger. Thank you very much.

10 Well, we've come to the end here and it's

11 pretty good, just exactly almost 4:00. And we're

12 going to take a break at the time. Well, we're going

13 to terminate this proceeding. This is the Limited

14 Appearance Statement session so we'll conclude this.

15 And then in about 15 minutes, maybe 4:15,

16 4:10, we'll reconvene in here and what I'd like to do

17 is ask the lawyers and the pro se representatives --

18 Ms. Olson and Mr. Berger, if he's here -- or Haemer --

19 I'm sorry, if he's here -- to come forward because

20 then we're going to be working and talking with them.

21 And if you all could accommodate that. I think we've

22 got seats in the front. Nobody likes to sit in the

23 front anyway; I'll make the lawyers sit up there.

24 And then we'll talk and have this pre-

25 hearing conference, is what it's called, and that will
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1 probably take about an hour. And you can sit in and

2 listen; it's also public.

3 And we do these kind of things from time

4 to time on the telephone, like a conference call, and

5 we issue notices to the parties. Anyway, one of the

6 things we always say is if people want to dial in and

7 listen, members of the public, those are open to the

8 public, too.

9 But this is one we're going to have in

10 person, so if you want to sit and watch, that will be

11 fine.

12 Before we close, I'm going to ask my

13 colleagues if they want to say anything. But I do

14 want to say that I've been doing this for eight years.

15 I wasn't doing it in the '60s and '70s, but I've been

16 doing it for eight years. And this is the largest

17 number of people who have come forward in those eight

18 years that I know of -- certainly in my case, and I

19 think in any other case -- to make Limited Appearance

20 Statement sessions at any given session.

21 And I've done them in Vermont, and in

22 California, and so, you know, in places where people

23 are active and concerned. It's obviously you all are

24 active and concerned, too, and there are people who

25 are pro, and they're con, and they're passionate, but
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1 you've been articulate and thoughtful in your comments

2 and constructive. And we really appreciate that and

3 we thank you all for coming.

4 Dr. Baratta or Dr. Charbeneau, anything

5 you all want to add to that?

6 DR. CHARBENEAU: No. Only that I

7 appreciate you coming and I appreciate the comments

8 very much.

9 Dr. BARATTA: I would like to add the

10 same, too. I appreciate your time and patience with

11 the last couple of hours we've been here, and your

12 thoughts and what you had to say will be taken into

13 account as we move forward. Thank you.

14 DR. KARLIN: Yes. And we will be having

15 another session at 7:00 p.m. this evening for

16 additional people who want to talk. Hopefully we

17 won't get too many repeats, but if you really have to,

18 you can come back again.

19 But then we're going to have a hearing in

20 October probably. It's a function of when the Final

21 Environmental Impact Statement comes out, so you've

22 got to watch that. But we'll hopefully be back down

23 here in about October to do the actual trial.

24 Again, I thank everyone -- thank you all

25 for coming out and we'll stand adjourned at this
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point. We will reconvene in 15 minutes for the pre-

hearing conference. Thank you.

(Whereupon, at 4:00 p.m. the meeting was

adjourned.)
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